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Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan J5SC

Management's Statement of Responsibility for the Preparation and Approval of the Financial
Statements for the Year Ended 31 December 2022

The following statement, which must be considered together with the descripthon of responsibilities of
the auditors contained in the presented Independent Auditors’ Report, 1s made for the purpese of division
of responsibilities of the auditor the and management of the Bank regarding the financial statements af
Shimhan Bank Bazakhstan J5C (hereinafter - the Bank),

The Bank's management shall be liable for preparation of the financial statements presenting fairly, in
all material respects, the financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2022, as well as its financial
performance, cash flows and changes in the equity for the year then ended, In accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

When preparing the financial statements, the management shall be liable for:

" Selecting appropriate acocounting principles and applying them consistently;

" Appiving justified reasonable estimates and calculations;

. Complying with the requirements of the IFRS or disclosure of all material deviations from the
IFRS im the notes to the financial statements; and

. Preparing the financial statements assuming that the Bank will continue as a going concern in

the foreseeable future except when such an assumption is unlawiul,

The management is alse responsible for:

. Design, implementation and ensuring effective and reliable internal control in the Bank;

. Record keeping that allows providing sufficiently accurate information on the financial position
of the Bank at any date and ensuring compliance of the financial statements with IFRSs;

. Record keeping according to the laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan;

. Taking all reasonably possible actions to safeguard the Bank's assets; and

" Detecting and preventing frauds and other abusive practices.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 have been approved by the management
af Shinhan Bank Wazakhstan J5C on 17 April 2023,

On behalf of the management’ ~—.

I
P f'ﬂrl{:h \i.ll
| AL S L _%_
Chairman of the Management Board | j.' Chief Accountant

Cho Youngeun ) / G.5h, IThaksybayeva

17 april 2023
Almaty City, Republic of Kazakhstan
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INDEPEMDENT AUDITORS" REPORT

To the Board of Directors and the Management Board of Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan JSC

Auditors' Report
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Shinhan Bank Kazakhstan J5C
(hereinafter - the Bank), which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31 December
2022, and statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, statement of changes In
equity and statement of cash flows for the year then ended, including a summary of significant
accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

In our apinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the Bank as of 31 December 2022, as well as its financial performance and cash
flows for the year then ended, In accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
{IFRSs).

Basiz for opinion

We conducted our awdit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (154s5). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Audifor's Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.

We are independent of the Bank in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Beard for
Accountants' Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) and ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements In Kazakhstan, and we have fulfilled our
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the IESBA Code, We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinkon,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial
Statements

The management s responsible for the preparation and falr presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and for internal comtrol, as
management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of a financial statement that is free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Bank's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters relating to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting, unless management either intends to liquidate the Bank or
to cease operations or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Bank's financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from materlal misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and to issue an auditor's
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not &
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with International Standards on Auditing will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists, Misstatements can arise from fraud or error
and are considered material if, individually or In the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decislons of users taken based on these financial statements.

As a part of an audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud & higher than the one
resulting from error, as fraud may invelve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on Lhe
effectiveness of the Bank's internal control;

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policles used and the reasonableness af
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management;

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence cbtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to evenls
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Bank's ability to continue as a going concern, If
we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
repart to the related disclesures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
ta modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Bank to cease to continue
a5 a going Concern;

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including

the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a mannes that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with these charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal conkral that we identify during our audit,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s repart is issued:

-~ in

-
Auditor G. zharilht’r@a )

-

LS

BEDO Qazagstan LLP Auditor's  Qualification

State license No. 21012748 Issued on 19 March 2oz N0-0000217 dated 22.12.2014
by the Committee for Internal State Audit of the issued by the Qualification Commission
Ministry of Finance of the Republic of Kazakhstan.  for certification of the auditors of the

17" April 2023
Almaty City
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Thousand tenge
Interest income
Interest axpenses

Het interest income
Fee income

Feg expenses

Het fes income

Met profit from foreign currency transactions

Other aperating Income/ (expentes), net
Operating income

Recovery of losses ! (losses) fram impatrment
Personnel expenses

Othver general and administrative expenses
Profit before income Lax

Imcome (ax eupenses

Profit for the year
Other comprehensive loss less income tax

Jtems that are or my be reclassified subsequently in

profit or [oss:

Prawision for revalwation of financial assets at falr

value through other comprehensive Income
- net change of fair value

Dther comprehensive loss for the year less income

tax
Total comprehensive income for the year

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted eamings per share (tenge)

On behalf of the management:

S ':'. gt o )
S N q:l:_.. 'h‘l

ﬁt - b
{"r} N

Chairman of the Managemerit Bejird |
Cho Youngeun ' Wz ELan

17 April 2023
Almaty City, Republic of Kazakhstan
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31,12.2022 31.12.2021
10,842, 801 5 411,480
[, 104, 881) 2,743,637
4,737,920 1,647 843
161,137 11%,354
(234,435) (174,063]
(73,198} {54,708)
406,541 321,887
(3,193) B AT
5. 267,970 1,979 BOS
{116, 624) (15,4568}
{1,004, 914) (B&4,133)
{523,579) {429 157)
3,625,853 1,540,847
(254,508) {135,79E)
1,371,345 1,405 049
33,538 53,316
13,518 53,114
3,404,883 1,458,375
1,361.89 1,401.03

M

Chiefl Accountant
.5k, Zhaksybayeva
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TYTEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION as of 31 December 2022

mum BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

. Ly
e T Thousand tenge

ASSETS

Cash and cash equivalents

Accounts and depoiits with banks
Financial assets at fair value through other
comiprehensive income

Loans granted (o corporate customers:
- ipans granted to large-scale businesses

= ioans granted to small and medium-sized businesses

- ioans granted to various customers
Finamcial assets at amortized cost
Current corporate (nooime Lax asiets
Hon-current assets held for sale
Praperty, plant and equipment and intangible assets
Deferred income tax assets
Other assets

Total aszets

LIABILITIES
Accounts and deposits of banks

Current accounts and deposits of customers
« current accounts and deposits of corporate
CUSLOMIETs

- current accounts and deposits of retall customers
Loans from banks
Loans from international financlal organizations

Current corparate income tax liabilities
Other llabilitles

Total Habilities

EQUITY

Hsued capital

Additional paid-up capital
Capital reserves

Prowision for revaluation of financial assets at fair value

through other comprehensive income

Retained earnings
Total equity T
Total u_.mmlmmd ity {h N

Ehalrmir: of the" mwne-n-! ]
Cho Youngeun ﬁd‘\ ﬁ':"l"'“ ;
"‘x Prd

17 April 2023 o
Almaty Clty, Republic ufkmmm

Motes on pages 10-61 shall be an ntegral part of these financial statements

Hotes 31,12, 2012 oLz
12 80,453, B0& 44 679,156
13 182,812 176,982
14 970, 269 1,261,647
1% 921,406
15 13,728,443 11,831,107
1% B&%4, 405 7.134 817
16 20,907,670 9,622,790

73,07
17 155,691 155,60
18 411,305 453,535
11 44, 971 43,493
19 1B6, 682 1,462,849
125,911,802 TH 144, 473
0 749,509 198,197
Py 71,141,596 46, 448 ETE
g 11,486,216 7,323,549

i1 13,868,271
23 8,130,594 4,797 176
- £
4 815,019 1,910,755
105, 641,205 61,278,759
15 10,028,720 10,028,720
a 144,196 144,198
173,516 1T 516
{34,548 68,086
5,853,713 b, 481, 368
20,270,597 16,865, 714
128,511,802 T8, 144 473

Chief M;muntnnt
G.5h. Thaksybayeva

7



SHINHAH BANK KATAKHSTAM J5C

1 |STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS for the year ended 31 December 2021

Thousand fenge

Cash flows from operating activities

Earmed interest income

Paid interest expenses

Earned fee income

Pald fee expenses

Met receipts from foreign currency transactions
Qther operating receipts’ (payrments)

Employee benefits

Qther paid gencral and adrminktralive expenies
Increase/(decrease) in operating assets
Accounts and deposits with banks

Loans granted to customers

Lowans granted to banks

Increasef{decrease) in operating liabllities
Accounts and deposits of banks
Current accounts and deposits of customers

Met cash flows from operating activities before Income tax
Paid income Lax

Met cash flews from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets

Drisposal of non-current assets held for sale

Acquisition of financial assets at amortized cost

Disposal of financial assets at fair value through ather
comprehensive income

Met cash flows used In Investing activities

Cash fMows frem financing activities

Borrowings obtained! {repaid)

Paid liabilities on lease

Met cash flows from/used in) financing activities

Met changes in cash and cash equivalents
Effect of changes of exchange rates on cash and cash
eguivalents

Preeision for cepected cradit lodses

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

31.12,2022 31,12.2021
10,724,775 5,041,517
(5,725,990 2,539, 399)

158, 744 120,034
(121,421) {170,850
475,818 288,175
189,659 i1,841)
[981,736) (B&T, 164)
{232,510) (420,571)
[2,581) 58
{2,360,091) {5,680,063)
. b1
{668,930} b6, 29
17,067 075 14,232,711
18,421,301 10,649 007
{310,000) (38,591)
28,111,331 10,610,416
i9,502) {50,107}
= 440 &70
‘-H:;H'pm] til“ri'q'ﬂb
310,982 .
(10,697, 296) i1,564,903)
17,218,842 {1,578,105)
{87,437} 92,173)
17,131,405 (2,070,278)
34, 545 440 6,973,238
1,233,427 427 855
(4,217 (1,608}
4, 679, 1548 7279 674
80,453, 806 44,679,156

.l

Hates on pages 11-61 shall be an integral part of these financial stalements

Chief Accountant
G.5h. Zhaksybayeva
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SHINHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAMN J5C
{NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 1012
(Ithousand Kazakhstan tenge)

BACKGROUND

Organization and primary activities

The Bank was founded in the Fepublic of Kazakhstan in 2008 as a joint stock company. The primary
activities of the Bank consist in the attraction of deposits and the maintenance of customer accounts,
loans granting and &sue of guaranteess, provision of cash and settlement services, making transactions
with securities and foreign currency. The Bank's activities are regulated by the Hational Bank of the
Republic of Kazakhstan [RK NB).

The official status of the Bank as a legal entity is established through the state registration with the
Mirlstry of Justice of the Republic and Kazakhstan (Certificate of the state registration of a legal entity
Mo, 5037-1900-40 [FP), the right to be engaged in banking established by the Agency of the Republic of
Kazakhstan for regulation and supervision of financial market and financial organizations (AFS) (license
to settie banking and other transactions No. 1.1.258 dated 18 November 2008).

In January 2015, in connection with the entry into force of the Law of the Republic of Kazakhstan On
Amendments and Alterations to Certain Legislative Acts of the Republic of Korakhstan Concerning the
Authorization System, the designation of a type of banking transaction ‘related to organization of foreign
currency exchange transactions’ was changed to the ‘organization of foreign currency exchange
transactions’, incliding the organization of foreign exchange cash transactions, license of the Bank was
re-fssued (License of the National Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan No. 1.1,258 dated 20.01.2013], In
January 2017, due to a change of the legal address, the license of the Bank was re-issued (License of the
Hational Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan Mo. 1,1.258 dated 27.01.2017).

Legal address of the Bank: 38, Dostyk Ave., Almaty City, 050010, Republic of Kazakhstan.
The Bank has no branches. The most of assets and liabilities are in the Republic of Kazakhstan,

The Bank |3 wholly owned by Shinhan Bank J5C {Seoul, Republic of Korea} {hereinafter referred to as the
Parent Barik or the Shareholder), The ultimate parent company is Shinhan Financial Group Co. Ltd., which
is entitled to direct, In its sale discretion and in its own interests, the activities of the Bank. More details
on related party transactions are disclosed in Note 29,

Operating environment
General

The Bank’s activities are carried out mainly in Kazakhstan. Accordingly, the Bank is exposed to the risks
inherent in Kazakhstan's economic and financial markets, which exhibit the characteristics of an
emerging market economy. The legal system, tax system and legal framework continug to evolve but are
subject to varying interpretations and frequent changes which, along with other legal and financial
barriers, exacerbate the problems faced by organizations operating in Kazakhstan.

Impact of COVID-19 pandemics

in December 2019, for the first time, the news emerged from China about the outbreak of & new virus.
On 11 March 2020, the World Health Organization declared the cutbreak of a new type of COVID-19
coronavinus to be a pandemic. Due to the pandemic, Kazakhstan authorities have taken a range of
measures to contain and mitigate the spread of COVID-19 such as bars and restrictions on moving,
quarantine, self-isclation and restrictions on commercial activities, including business closures. Some of
the above measures were subsequently alleviated. The activities of the Company were not suspended
for the quarantine period; the work of office employees was organized on & remote basis. In 2022, many
countries lifted COVID restrictions, including the Republic of Kazakhstan, but according to the WHO, the
pandemic s far from over as new variants continue to spread,

The Bank continues to evaluate the impact of the pandemic and changing economic conditions on its
sperations, financlal position and financlal performance. To the extent that information has been
avallable as of 31 December 2022, the Bank has presented revised estimates of expected future cash

flows when estimating ECLs.

Economic factors

The events of February 2022 that were refated to the aggravation of the geopolitical situation in Ukraine
10
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», SHINHAN BAMK KAZAKHSTAN J5C
{#0TES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2022
[thousand Kazekhston tenge)

orusteR significantly affected the global ecanomy and the financial condition of companies. The natural course

2,
(a)

{b)

(e}

andg organic development of the economies of the leading countries were disrupted. Uncertainty of future
Events, volatility in raw and capital markets, logistical problems led to financial difficulties for many
companies, difficulties in forecasting and budgeting the activities of organizations in various sectars of
the sconamy,

The aggravation of the geopolitical situation led to the expansion of sanctions and restrictions of a
number of countries against certabn sectors of the Russian economy, Russian companies and citizens: a
number of international companies suspended or terminated their business activities In the Russian
Federation, as well as ceased to cooperate with the companies associated with the Russian Federation.
The management of the Bank monitors the development of the situation and takes all nécessary actions

to reduce and level emerging risks, ensure uninterrupted activities and maintain the financial stability
of the Bank,

The geopolitical crisls continues to have a negative Impact on the development of the world economy,
Under the pressure of rising energy prices and growing uncertainty, the economies of many countries are
slowing down. Weaker economic activities are confirmed by business activity indicators. The glabal
inflation remains at historical highs, However, against the backdrop of a slight decrease In world prices
for oil and other energy resources in seme countries in July 2022, the annual inflation slowed down.

On 2 December 2022, the international rating agency - Fitch Ratings - affirmed the sovereign credit rating
of the Republic of Kazakhstan at BBB, with a stable outlook. Kazakhstan's strang fiscal position amd
significant external provisions, which have contributed to its resilience to external factors, continue to
be the key drivers for maintaining Kazakhstan's credit rating. According to Fitch Ratings, international
reserves at the end of 2021 have made up 37.8% of GDP, which is significantly higher than the median of
countries with similar credit rating. At the same time, the country's dependence on commodities, high
infiation rate and an underdeveloped economic policy program are naticed. According to the agency,
high prices for key export commodities and an increase in oil production at Tengiz Field by 2024 will
balance the impact of the geopolitical situation in the region.

The analysts of Fitch Ratings predict a peak in inflation in the first half of 2023, while expecting an
average inflation of 9.5%. The agency emphasizes the commitment of the Mational Bank to a floating
exchange rate, which contributes to the absorption of negative factors.

In addition, the ofl and gas sector in the Republic of Kazakhstan remains subject to the influence of
political, legislative, tax and regulatory changes in the Republic of Kazakhstan, The prospects for
economic stability of the Republic of Kazakhstan largely depend on the effectiveness of economic
measures taken by the Government, as well as cn the development of the legal, reguiatory and political
systems, specifically on the circumstances that are beyond the control of the Bank.

The accompanying financial statements present the assessment of the Bank's management of the possible
impact of current conditions on the performance and financial position of the Bank. However, the impact

of changes in the economic situation on the future performance and financial position of the Bank is
currently difficult to determine,

FRAMEWORK GOT PREPARATIOM OF THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS
Statement of conformance to IFRSs

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS4) 85 approved by the international Accounting Standards Board (145 Board).

Basks of evaluation

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the actual cost principle, with the
exception of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income.

Functional and presentation currency

The functional currency of the Bank is the Kazakhstan tenge (hereinafter - the tenge), which, being the
national currency of the Republic of Kazakhstan, best reflects the economic essence of mast of the Bank's
cperations and related circumstances affecting its activities.

L
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D) | SHINHAN BAMK KAZAKHSTAN J5C
— NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2022

ithousand Kazakhstan tenge)

The Kazakistan tenge is also the presentation currency of these financial statements. All data presented
in the tenge have been rounded to the nearest thousand tenge unless otherwise stated,

Use of professional judgements, accounting estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the financial statements in accordance with the requirements of IFR3s requires the
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting
policies and the amount of assets and liabilities, income and expenses presented in the financial
statements. Actual results may differ fram these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a regular basis, The estimate adjustments
are recognized in the reporting period in which the estimates are revised and in any subsequent periods
which they affect.

The information regarding significant estimation uncertainties and critical reasonable judgments in
applying the accounting policies is provided in the following notes:

« Mote 15 - estimation of |oan impalrment;
« Wote 16 - classification of financial assets at amortized cost;
« Mote 30 - fair value of financial instruments.

Gaing concern

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared on the assumption of a going concern, which
implies the disposal of assets and the settlement of llabHities in the course of the ordinary business af
the Bank, In making this estimation, the Bank’s management considered a wide range of information
regarding current and future economic conditions, including projections for cash flows, earnings and
capital resources.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies described below have been applied by the Bank consistently throughout the
reporting periods presented in these financial statements.

Foreign exchange transactions

The foreign exchange transactions are transiated into the functional currency of the Bank at the
exchange rates prevailing on the dates of transactions,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currency at the reparting date are translated into
the functional currency at the exchange rate prevailing at the reporting date. Profit or loss from
transactions with monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency is a difference between
the amortized cost in the functhonal currency at the beginning of the period adjusted by the amount of
interest charged at the effective rate and payments during the period and amortized cost in foreign
currency transiated into the functional currency at the exchange rate at the end of the reporting period.

Mon-monetary assets and liabilities denominated in forelgn currency measured at fair value are
translated into the functional currency at the exchange rates prevailing on the dates of fair value
measurement, Non-monetary assets and liabilities denominated In foreign currency and reported at
actual costs are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate prevatling on a transaction
date,

The foreign exchange differences resulting from translation into the foreign currency are recognized in
profit or Loss.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash notes and colns, unrestricted balances [nostre accounts) with the
R¥ MB and other banks, as well as highly liquid financial assets with original maturities of Less than 3
months that are not subject to significant risk of changes in fair value and are used by the Bank to settle
current lisbiities, The statutory resendes with the 8K N8 are not considered as cash and cash equivalent
due o restrictions on use thereof, Cash and cash equivalents are reported at amortized cost in the
statement of financial position.

12
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Accounts and deposits with banks

In the course of its activities, the Bank opens current accounts or places deposits for varigus periods of
time with other banks. The amaunts due with fixed maturities are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method, The amounts due that do not have flxed maturities are carried
at original cost. These assets are accounted for (ess any provision for impairment.

Financlal imstruments
Recognition and measurement of fingncial Instruments

Financial assets and financial labilities are recognized in the statement of financial position of the Bank
when the Bank becomes a contracting party to the underlying financial instrument. The Bank reports
reguiar acquisitions and disposals of financial assets and liabilities wsing the accounting method at the

settlement date. Financial instruments acquired in this way, which will subsequently be measured at fair
value, are accounted for in the same way as the acquired instruments from the time of conclusion of a

transaction until the settlement date set,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially reported at fair value. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition or lssue of financial assets and financial liabilities {other than financial
assets and financial liabilities reported at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)) respectively increase
or decrease the fair value of financial assets or financial liabilities at inftial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilithes reported at fair
value through profit or loss are reported directly In profit or loss. The accounting principles used to
subsequently measure the value of financial assets and financial liabilities are disclosed in the relevant
accounting policies described below,

Financial assels

All financial assets are recognized and derecognised on a date of transaction when a financial asset is
purchasad or sold under a contract the terms of which require delivery of the financial asset within the
time limits set by the relevant market and are initially measured at fair valee, plus transaction costs,
excluding those financial assets that are classified as measured at fair value through prefit or loss.
Transaction costs directly attributable te the acquisition of financial assets classified as measured at fair
value through profit or loss are recognized immediately in profit or loss.

All recognized financial assets that are within the scope of IFRS 9 Financiol Instruments must be
subsequently measured at amortized cost or fair value based on the Bank's business model for managing
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of financial assets.

AL the same time:
" Holding an asset fo receive contractual cash flows.

This business model assumes that the financial assets are managed to realize cash flows by receiving
payments of principal and interest over the life of the financial instrument.

Under this business model, holding a financial asset to maturity is a priority, but early disposal is not
prohibived.
. Holding an asset to recelve contractual cash flows and sell financial assets.

This business model assumes that the management of financial assets it almed at both receiving
contractual cash flows and sedling financial assets. Within this business model, the receipt of cash from
the sale of a financial asset is a priority, which is characterized by a higher frequency and volume of
sales compared to the business model of *Holding an asset to recelve contractual cash flows',

. Halding @n assel for other purposes.
Within this business maodel, the goal of managing the financial assets can be:
&, management for the purpese of realizing cash flows through the sale of financial assets;
b. liguidity management to meet daily funding needs;
c. a portfolio the management and performance evaluation of which are based on a fair value; and

d. a portfollo that meets the ‘held for trade' definition, Financial assets are considered to be heid
for trade if they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the near term (up to
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\“T_u_.--' 180 days), generating short-term profits, or are financial derivatives [with the exception of a
financial guarantee or derivative financial instruments, which have been identified as hedging
instrument).

in accordance with IFRS 9, the Bank's linancial assets are classified as follows:

= lpans granted to customers that are classified as assets measured at amortized cost are held within
a business model almed at receiving contractual cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest on principal outstanding and which include solely payments on account of principal
and fnterest (5PP1);

+ balances on correspondent accounts, interbank loans/ deposits, REPO transactions are classified, as
a rnde, as assets measured at amortized cost since they are managed within a business model
aimed at receiving contractual cash flows that include 5PPI;

« debt securities may be classified into any of three classification categories based on the chosen
business model and 5PPI test compliance;

= gquity securities are classified, as a rule, Into the category of Instruments measured at fair value
with changes thereln reported in profit or loss for the period; and

« trading securities and derivative financial instruments are classified into the category of financial
asiets measured at fair value with changes therein reported in profit or loss for the period.

Financial (fabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair value throwgh profit and loss or
other financial liabilities.

& financial Hability is classified as held for trade if;
+ it is accepted for the primary purpose of repurchase in the near future,

» when initially recognized, it 15 & part of a portfodio of identified financial instruments that are
managed by the Bank as a single portfolio that has a recent history of short-term purchases and
reselling, or

» it is a derivative instrument that is not classified and is not wed as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than financial liability or contingent consideration that may be paid by a
customer in & business combination held for trade may be gualified as FVTPL financial liability at the
time of recognition if:

« the use of such a classification eliminates or significantly reduces imbalances in the measurement
of or accounting for the assets or Habilitles that might otherwise arise;

+ & financial liability fs a part of a group of financial assets or financial liabilities or a group of
financial assets and liabilities that are managed and measured on the basis of a fair value in
accordance with the Bank’s documented risk management or investment strategy and the
information about such a group of financial liabilities is presented within the organization on this
basis; or

+ a financial liability is a part of an instrument containing one or more embedded derivatives, and
IFRS 9 allows the instrument as a whole [asset or Hability) to be classified as measured at fair value
with recognizing changes therein in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial assets and financial labilities measured at fair value through profit or loss are accounted for
in the statement of financial position at fair value, Changes in fair value are reported in net loss/ (profit)
on financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value through profit or loss, Interest earned or incurred
is recognized as inténest Income or eXpense, as appropriate, in accordance with the terms of a contract,
while dividend income i3 recorded In Other income when the right to recefve dividends is established,

Debt instruments at amortized cost or at fair valve through other comprehensive income

The Bank assesses the classification and measurement of a financial asset based on the characteristics
provided by the cash flow contract and the Bank's business model used to manage the asset.

Tao classify and measure an asset at amortized cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the terms of the relevant contract must provide for the occurrence of cash flows that include solely
payment of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.

14



/i
|

.-,-'-.

[irm

pFUETen s
o T -~

fil)

--'—-\._HH
BDO ‘-ﬁllsmnm.u BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

|BDO

gazagiTad

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2012
| (thousand Kazakhstan tenge)

When revising the contractual cash flows for compliance with the specified requirements, the principal
outstanding is considered as a fair value of a financial asset at its initial recognition. During the life of a
financial asset, the principal debt may change (for exampie, in the case of principal payments]. Intm_est
includes consideration for the time value of money, for the credit risk of principal remaining outstanding
for a specified period of time, and for other normal risks and costs assoclated with lending, as vfell asa
profit margin. The payments of principal and interest are measured in a currency in which a financial

asset it denominated.

The contractual cash flows, which include solely payments of principal and interest, comply with the
terms of an underlying loan contract. Contractual tesrms that give rise to risks or volatility I_n contractual
cash flows that are not related to the underlying loan contract, swuch as share or commodity price risk,
da not give rise to contractual cash flows that include sclely payment of principal and interest on the
principal outstanding. An originated or acquired financial asset may be the underlying loan contract,
whether or not it is a loan in its legal form.

The business models used to manage financial assets was assessed at the date of first adoption of IFRS 9
to classify a financial asset. The business model has been applied retrospectively to all financial assets
recognized in the Bank's balance sheet at the date of first adoption of IFRS 9. The business model used
by the Bank is defined at a level that reflects how the grouped financial assets are managed to achieve
a particular business objective, 5ince the Bank's business model i not subject to the management's
intentions for an individual Instrument, the assessment is not made at the level of individual instruments,
but at & higher level of aggregation,

To manage its financial instruments, the Bank uses several business models that describe the mechanism
for managing financial assets in order to generate cash flows. These business models determine whether
cash flows of the Bank will result from the receipt of contractual cash flows, the sale of financial assets,
or bath.

When assessing 3 business model, the Bank takes into account all avallable information. However, the
assessment is not based on scenarios that the Bank can reasonably expect to occur, such as a “worst
case’ or “stress’ scenario. The Bank takes fnto account all relevant data, such as:

« a machanism for evaluating the effectiveness of the business model and the financial assets held
within that business model and reporting to key management personnel;

« risks affecting the effectiveness of the business model {and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed; and

« the mechanism for paying remuneration to management (for example, the grounds for paying
remuneration are analysed: a fair value of relevant assets or contractual cash flows recelved).

At initial recognition of a financial asset, the Bank determines whether newly recognized financial assets
are part of an existing business model or indicate the emergence of a new business model. The Bank
reviews its business models in each reporting period to identify changes from the previous period. In the
current reporting period, the Bank did not reveal any changes in its business madels.

Upon derecognition of a dedt instrument measured at fair value through other comprehensive income,
the cumulative profit/loss previously recognized in other comprehensive income is reclassified from
equity to profit or loss. Debt instruments that, after initial recognition, are measured at armortized cost
or at fair value through other comprehensive income are subject to impairment.

Derecognition

The Bank devecognizes a financial asset when b loses its contractual rights to cash flows from that
financial asset, or when It transfers a financial asset in a transaction in which substantially all the risks
and rewards of awnership of the financial asset are transferred to the other party, or in which the Bank
does not transfer of retain substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of that financial
asset and does not retain controd of the financial asset. Any Interest in transferred financial assets that
qualify for derecognition created or retalned by the Bank is recognized as a separate asset or liakility in

the statement of financial position. The Bank derecognizes a financial liabilit
el ¥ when the contractual
liabilities on it are discharged, cancelled or terminated.

The Bank enters inta transactions whereby it transfers the assets recognized in the statement of financial
position, but retains all or part of the risks and rewards arising from ownership of the transferred assets.
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b q,;:";'uu_ / While retaining all or substantially all the risks and rewards, the Bank does not derecognize the

e transferred assets,

Im transactions where the Bank does not retain, but does not transfer substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of a financial asset, that asset is derecognized if the Bank has lost control of the
asset.

If the Bank retains control of the asset when it is transferred, it continues to recognize the asset to the
extent that it retains an interest in the asset, which 1§ determined as an extent to which the Bank s
exposed to changes in its value,

The Bank writes off he assets that are recognized as uncollectible.
[ifi)  Assets ond (fabilities offset

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and presented in the statement of financial position on a net
basis only when the Bank currently has an enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and intends
to either settle them on a net basis or dispose of the asset and settle the liability at the same time. The
Bank currently has a legally enforceable right to set off unless this right is conditional on a future event
and is legally enforceable bath in the normal course of business and in case of a default on liabilities,
insolvency of bankruptcy of the Bank or any of its counterparties,

) Impaisment
Impairment for financial assets was calculated taking into account the following factors:

= To calculate the amount of expected credit losses (ECLs), the Bank evaluates the loans on a case-
by-case basis and on a group basis with grouping the assets based on the general characteristics of
credit risk,

- ECLs are estimates of the present value of credit losses given their probability. The estimate of
these losses is the present value of a difference between the cash flows due to the Bank under a
contract and the cash flows that the Bank expects to receive based on a probability analysis of a
number of economic scenarios, discounted using the effective interest rate far the relevant asset.

* The calculation is based on reasonable and substantiated information that can be obtained without
undue cost or effort. The calculation of the current value of the expected future cash flow of a
collateralized financial asset reflects the cash flow that could result from enforcement minus the
costs of obtaining and enforcing the collateral whether or not enforcement is probable. The
provisions are based on the Bank's own loss analysis experience and management's assumptions
about the level of losses that are likely to be recognized for assets in each credit risk category
based on the capability to service a debt and the barrower's credit history.

+ The impairment for treasury operations (investments in debt securities, reverse REPO transactions,
Interbank loans and deposits, operations on correspondent accounts, receivables on treasury
operations) is calculated taking into account the rating of a counterparty, the probability of
defaull, the term of a transaction and the level of loss at default.

» The expected credit losses on treasury operations are measured on a case-by-case basis (except for
certain claims in the form of receivables).

Financial assets are segmented into baskets in accordance with the following approach:

» Stage 1: the credit risk has not increased significantly since the recognition of an asset: impairment
Is recognized in the amount of expected losses over the next 12 months:

« Stage 1. the credit risk has increased significantly since the recognition of an asset: impairment is
recognized in the amount of expected losses over the entire life of a financial asset:

« Stage 3: The financial asset is in default or has indications of impairment.
Provisions for expected cradit [osses
The expected credit losses must be estimated using an allowance the value of which is equal o

+ the amount of credit losses expected over the next 12 months 1.e. that portion of credit losses over
the entire life of a financlal instrument that represents expected credit losses due to defaults on
liabilities under the instrument that may arise within 12 months after the reporting date iStage
1
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ki + the amaunt of credit losses expected over the entire life of a financial instrument, which arise as
a result of all possible cases of default on liabilities under an instrument during term thereof
[Stage & and Stage 1],

The creation of an allowance in the amount of total ECLs for the entire life of a financiak instrument i3
required tn the event of a significant increase in the credit risk of the instrument since its initial

recognition. in all other cases, the provisions for ECLs are formed in the amount equal to the ECLs within
12 monkhs,

b

« For undrawn credit, ECLs are as difference between the present value of the difference between
the contractual cash flows due to the Bank if the holder of & commitment draws the credit and
the cash flows the Bank expects to receive if the credit is drawn.

» For financial guarantee contracts, ECLs are a difference between the expected payments to

indemnify a holder of guaranteed debt instrument less any amounts that the Bank expects to
receive from holder, borrower or any other party.

ECLs are estimated for individual loans or portfolios of loans with similar risk characteristics. The
calculation of an allowance for ECLs (whether on & case-by-case basis or on a group basis) s based an
the present value of the expected cash flows for the asset using the original effective interest rate (EIR).

When determining ECLs, it is extremely impartant to use the definition of a default. The definition of a
default s used to estimate the amount of ECLs and to determine if an allowance is calculated for the
next 11 maonths or for the entire term of the loan, since the concept of “a default’ is a part of the concept

of 'probability of a default’, which affects both the estimate of ECLs and identification of a significant
increase in credik risk.

Definition of a default

Financial assets in default bear the maximum credit risk, and there I8 no possibility of recovery within
the criginal time limits set, restructuring or, in the absence of prospects for such restructuring,
recognition of loss in full or in part is required. Detericration of the financial condition of the

issuer /borrower below a critical level includes significant losses, a decrease in market share, the cost of
capital falling below e,

Due to the specificity of each of the financial assets in the Bank's portfolio, the decision on recognition
of default is made after being considered by the Credit Committee of the Bank on a case-by-case basis.

45 a rule, this decision is made as a result of events that have happened or are highly likely to be
expected.

The q:.l-li1l.'z_|t'r'.re factors for the impairment of financial assets may include the suspension of accrual of
rémuneration due to the deterioration of the financial condition of a counterparty, the write-off of a
part and/or full amount outstanding, which is caused by a significant increase in credit risk since the
provision of the financial asset, the sale of financial assets with a significant discount (15% or more],
loan restructuring, filing a lawsuit for recognizing a counterparty as a bankrupt, as well as the

IT:taappeamncwf an active market for a security, a decrease in the value of collateral or other observabile

vl Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is considered to be credit-impaired if one or maore events sceur th
: _ at have a negative
impact on the estimated future cash flows of such financial asset. In relation to credit-impaired financial

assets, the term 'Stage 3 assets' |s used. The indicators of credit impairment include
the following events: n ude observable data on

» significant financial difficulties of the borrower or lender:
« viglation of the terms of a contract, such as default or late PAYTIEnL;

« the lender making & concession to the borrower

r for economic reasans
the financial difficulties of the borrower e berms. i ko

that the lender would not otherwise have made:
« the disappearance of an active market for the security as a result of financial difficulties: or
» purchasing a financial asset at large discount that reflects the credit losses incurred.

In some cases, the identification of a single event |5 not

! possible because th i
financial asset may be due to the combined effect of sev e credit impairment of a

eral events. At each reporting date, the Bank
17
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assesses for credit impairment the debt instruments, which are financial assets measured at amartized
cost or al fair value through other comprehensive income. In assessing the credit impairment of

government and corporate debt instruments, the Bank considers factors such as bond yields, credit
ratings and the borrower’s ability to raise funds.

A loan is considered to be credit-impaired if a concession is granted to the borrower due to deterioratian
in financial condition, provided there is no evidence that the concession resulted in a significant
reduction in the risk of not receiving contractual cash flows, and no other indicators of impairment exist.
Financial assets for which concession has been considered but not granted are considered to be credit-
impaired if there are ohseryable indicators of credit impairment, including those matching the definition
of 2 default. The definition of a default includes indicators of the lack of probability of payment and the
expiration of the payment period (in case of delay for %0 days or more). The decision to use cross default

is based on an individual assessment of the conditions of the customer's object, such as collateral and
materiality of the credit risk,

Property, plant and equipment
Owen assets

The itermns of property, plant and equipment are reported in the financial statements at actual cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses. If an item of property, plant and equipment consists
of several components with different useful lives, such components are reported as separate items of
property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation

Depreciation is charged on property, plant and equipment on a declining balance method at the rates,
in the amount not exceeding 10% for all types of property, plant and equipment, except for cases where
the life of the item of property, plant and equipment |s determined by special conditions for the use of
that ftem of property, plant and equipment and is presented in profit or loss. Depreciation is charged
from a date of acquisition of the item and, for items of property, plant and equipment erected in house,

from the moment the construction of the object is completed and it is ready for operation. Land plots
are not depreciated.

If the Bank makes an fnvestment in leased property, plant and equipment, such costs are amortized on
a straight-line basis over the sherter of the lease term or the useful life of the improvements to the
leased property.

intangible assets

Acquired intangible assets are reported in the financial statements at actual cost less accumulated
amortization and impairment losses. The costs of acquiring licenses for special software and its
implementation are capitalized in the cost of the corresponding intangible asset.

Amortization Is charged on intangible assets using the declining balance method at the rates, in the
amount not exceeding 20% for all types of intangible assets, axcept for cases where the useful life of an
intangible asset is determined by special conditions for the use of this intangible asset and is presented
in profit or Loss,

Lease

The Bank, as a lessee, recognizes a right-of-use asset, which is the right to use the assets, and a liability,
which 15 a lability on lease payments,

For all lease contracts (except for those specified below), the Bank:

+ recognizes in the statement of financial position the right-of-use assets and the lease liabilities in
'Property, plant and equipment” and "Other liabilities”, respectively;

« recognizes in the statement of profit and loss the amortization of the right-of-use assets as
deterioration and amortization expenses in "Operating expenses’ and interest on lease liabilities
in “Interest expenses’; and

= separatés in the statement of cash flows the total cash used to repay principal [represented in
financing activities) and interest (represented in operating activities).

The right-to-use assets are tested for impairment in accordance with 1AS 38 Asset Impairment.

For short-term leases {up to 12 months) and low-value leases of assets, the Bank recognires lease
18
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expenses on a stralght-line basls,

Lease incentive payments (for example, a free (grace) period) are recognized as part of the measurement
of the right-of-use atsets and the lease Liahiities at initial recognition.

Assats held for sale

Hon-current assets and Uabilities directly related to non-current assets are classified as held for sale
i*disposal group’) if it 15 likely that the current value of such assets will be recovered primarily through
the sale of these assets, but not through their permanent use, as well a3 if such assets (or disposal group)
may be dispased of in their current condition. The management must be committed to selling such assets
within one year from a date these assets are classified as held for sale.

hssets held for sale are measured at the lower of their current and fair value, less selling expenses. In
case the fair value of an asset held for sale, less selling expenses, |5 less than its current value, the entity
miust recognize the impairment Loss in the statement of profit and losses as Loss from assets held for sale.
Anvy subsequent increase in the asset’s fair valee, less selling expenses, & recognized In the amount of
the accumulated Impairment loss previously recognized for those assets,

impairment of non-financial assets

Mon-financial assets, other than deferred tax assets, are tested for impairment at each reporting date,
The recoverable amount of non-financial assets is the higher of fair value less selling expenses and value
in use, In determining the value in use, estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value
using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market estimate of the time value of money and
the risks incidental to the asset, For an asset that does not generate cash flows generated by other
assets, the recoverable amount is determined by the group of cash generating assets to which the asset
belongs. The impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount of a cash-generating asset or group
of cash-generating assets exceeds its recoverable amount.

All impairment losses of non-financial assets are recognized in profit or loss and are only reversed if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determing the recoverable amount. Any impairment
loss of an asset is reversed to the extent that the carmying amount of the asset does not exceed the
carrying amount (less amortization) that would have occurred had the impairment loss not been reported
in the financial statements.

Provisions

A provision is reported in the statement of financial position when the Bank has a legal or reasonable
Hability as & result of past event and it is probable that an outflow of funds will be required to settle
that lability. If the amount of such lability is significant, then provisions are determined by discounting
estimated futwre cash flows using & pre-tax discount rate that reflects the current market estimate of
the time value of money and, where applicable, the risks incidental to the Labflity.

Contingent credit Habilities

In the course of its current basiness activitles, the Bank assumes contingent credit liabilities including
undrawn credit facilities, letters of credit and guarantees, and provides other forms of credit insurance.

Financial guarantees are contracts that oblige the Bank to make specified payments to compensate a
holder of & financial guarantee for losses incurred because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when due in accordance with the terms of a det instrument.

& lkabblity under a financial guarantee ks initially recognized at fair value less the associated transaction
costs and subsequently measured at the higher of the amount initially recognized less accumulated
depreciation or the provision for possible losses under the guarantee, Provisions for possible losses under
financial guarantees and other credit liabilities are recognized when there is a high probability of
ocourrence of losses and such lodses can be measured with a reasonable degree of rellability,

Liabilities under financial guarantees and provisions for other credit 1iabilities are included in other
liabilities.

Lending liabilities are not recognized In the financial statements except for the following:

« commitments to grant loans, which the Bank defimes as financial liabilities at fair value the
changes in which are reported in profit or loss for the period;
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« if the Bank has a past experience of selling the assets acquired in connection with loan
commitments, shortly after they arise, simllar to the loan commitments belonglng to the same
elass of instrurments that are considered as derlvative financial instruments;

. loan commitments that are settled according to a contract on a net basis in cash or by transfer or
jspue of another financlal instrument; or

« loan commitments at a rate below the market one,

Issued capital
Ordinary sheres

The ordinary shares are classified a3 equity. Costs directly attributable to the issue of ordinary shares
and share options are recognized as a decrease in equity less any tax effects.

Dividend

The ability of the Bank to declare and pay dividends is subject to the regulation of the effective
legistation of the Republic of Kazakhstan.

Dividend on ordinary shares are recognized in the financial statements as a use of retained earnings
wihen declared.

Taxation

The income tax includes current tax and deferred tax, Income tax is recognized in profit or lass in full,
with the exception of amounts relating to transactions recognized in other comprehansive income or
transactions with owners recognized directly in equity, which, respectively, are reported in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current income tax expenses are calculated based on the estimated taxable profit for the year taking
into ateount the Income tax rates in force at the reporting date, as well as the labllities arising from
the adjustment of income tax amounts for previous reparting years.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are recognized for temparary differences arising between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities determined for the pufpeses of their presentation in the
financial statements and their tax base. Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are not
recognized for the following temporary differences: differences relating to assets and liabilities the
initial recognition of which does not affect either accounting or taxable profit. The deferred tax assets
and deferred tax liabilities are determined based on the tax rates that will apply in the future at the
time of the reversal of the temparary differences, based on the laws in effect or substantially enacted
at the reporting date,

The calculation of deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities reflects the tax implications that
depend on the manner in which the Bank is going to recover or settle the carrying amount of assets and
liabilithes at the end of the reparting periad.

Deferred tax assets are recognized to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable profit will be
generated in the future to cover the temporary differences, non-recorded tax expenses and unused tax
benefits.

The deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent that it is not probable that taxable profit will be
avallable against which the deductible tempaorary differences can be used.

Recognition of income and expenses in the financial statements

interest income and expenses on all financlal instruments, except for financial assets measured at fair
value through profit or loss, are recognized in Met interest income as Interest income caloulated wing
the effective interest method and Interest expenses in the statement of profit and losses using the
effective interest method.

The effective interest rate s & rate that discounts the estimated future cash flows of a financial
instrument to the net carrying amount over the expected life of a financial asset or liability or {if
applicable) over a shorter peried. Future cash flows are estimated taking into acoount all contractual
conditions of the instrument.

ifa I'1n:nclql asset or @ group of financial assets has been written off or partially written off) as a result
of an impairment, interest income is determined using the interest rate wsed to discount future cash
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flows to calculate impairment (osses to the net amortized cost of that financial asset, 1T default on a

financial asset is liguidated and it is no longer credit-impaired, the Bank reverts to calculating interest
ncome on a gross basis.

Fiee income is reported as a transfer of services to customers in an amount that reflects a consideration
expected ta be received in exchange for such services. The Bank defines a performance obligation id est
the services agreed upon with a customer and a consideration, and recognizes income in accordance
with the transfer of services, performance obligation agreed upon with the customer,

For each performance obligation identified, the Bank determimes at the time of contract conclusion
whether it fulfils performance obligation within specified time limit or at a specified point in time, and
whether the consideration s fixed or variable, including the limitation of reimbursement, for example,
by external factors mot related to the influence of the Bank. The reimbursement ks subseguently
allocated to the identified performance obligation.

The other fees, as well as other income and expenses, are recognized in profit or loss on the date the
related service is provided,

FPayments under operating lease contracts are recognized in profit or loss for the period on & stralght-
line basis over the entire lease term. The amount of benefits recelved reduces the total lease expenses
for entire lease term,

(o} Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantees or letters of credit provided by the Bank are collateral for credit transactions that
provide for payment as compensation for a loss that is incurred if a debtor fails to make payment in due
time in accordance with the original or modified terms of a debt instrument. Such financial guarantees
or letters of credit are initially reported at fair value, Subsequently, they are measured on the basis of
[a) the amount recognized as a provision and (b) the amount initially recognized, less, where applicable,
accumulated amaortization of deferred income in the form of a premium received under a financial
guarantee or letters of credit, whichever is greater,

{p) Adoption of new and amended International Financial Reporting Standards (IFR5s)

The Bank has adapted for the first time certain standards and amendments that are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022, The Bank has not early adopted standards,
interpretations or amendments that have been issued but are not yet effective. The nature and impact
of each amendment are described below:

Amendments to FRS 3 - Reference to the Conceptual Framework

&5 a result of the amendments, references to the previous version of the Conceptual Framework of the
IA% Board have Been replaced with references to the current version of the Conceptual Framewark, issued
in March 2018, without making significant changes to the requirements contained in this document.

As a result of the amendments, an exception was added to the recognition principle in IFRS 3 Business
Combingtion to avoid the potential "day 2' gains or losses for Liabilitles and contingent liabilities that
wizuld fall within the scope of 1AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Ligbilities and Contingent Assets or IFRIC 11
Levies, if they would arise as part of separate transactions. Under this exception, instead of applying the
Conceptual Framework, entities must apply the criteria of 145 37 or IFRIC 21 to determine whether an
ohligation exists at the acquisition date.

A% & result of the amendments, a new paragraph has also been added to the text of IFRS 3, which clarifies
that, at the date of acquisition, recognition of a contingent asset is not allowed.,

Amendments to IAS 37 - Onerous Controcts - Cost of Fulfilling a Contract, practical illustration of
construction contract accounting

Under 145 37 Provistons, Contingent Liabilitles and Contingernd Assets, an onerows contract i & contract
in which the unavoidable costs of meeting the obligations under the contract exceed the economic
benefits expected to be recelved under it

The amendment determines the costs an entity shall include when estimating an unprofitable contract.
Thus, direct costs of fulfilling a contract include:

1) the incremental costs of fulfilling that contract (for example, direct costs of labour and materials);
and
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T 2} an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling contracts (for example, an allocation
of the depreciation charge for an item of property, plant and equipment used in fulfliling that
contract),

Since some entities previously included only Incremental costs in costs of fulfilling a contract, the
amendment would allow recognizing a large amount of provision for onerous contracts.

An entity shall apply these amendments to contracts for which it has not yet fullilled all of its obligations
at the start of the anmual reporting period in which it first applies the amendments (the date of initial
adoption). An entity cannot restate comparative information. Instead, an entity shall recogmize the

cumuiative effect of the initial adoption of these amendments as an adjustment to opening balance of
retained eamings or, if applicable, another companent of equity at the date of inftial adeption.

Amendments to IFRS 9 - Financial instruments

The amendment to IFRS 9 specifies which payments must be included in the '10% test” to devecognise
the financial liabilities.

The amendment clarifies the fees that an entity accounts for when assessing whether the terms of a new
ar modified financial liability are materially different from the terms of the original financial liability.
Such amounts include only those fees paid or received between a particular lender and a barrower,
including fees paid or received by a lender or borrower on behalf of the other party.

Amendments to IAS 16 - Property, Plant and Equipment

Undar 1AS 16, the cost of an asset includes any costs for its delivery and preparation for operation,
including the costs of verifying the proper functioning of the asset.

The amendments prohibit the deduction from the original cost of property, plant and equipment af
amounts recelved from the sale of products preduced while the asset was being prepared for its intended
wse, Instead, such proceeds from sales and related costs are recognized in profit or loss. To measure the
value of such assets, an entity must apply 145 2 Inventorfes, excluding depreciation, because the asset is
not yet ready for its intended use.

Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and 145 39, IFRS 4, IFRS 16 - Interest Rate Benchmark Reform

The amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9, 1AS 19 Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurément provide

for a number of exemptions that apply to all hedging relationships that are directly affected by the
interest rate benchmark reform. The interest rate benchmark reform affects hedging relationships if it

results in uncertainties about the timing and/or amount of cash flows based on base interest rate on the
hedged item or hedging instrument.

Amendments to IFRS 1 - First-Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards

The amendment to IFRS 1 concerns subsidiaries that are applying IFRSs for the first time. A subsidiary
will be allowed to apply the exemption if it started applying IFRSs later than the parent. The entities
that apply this exemption will be able to measure accumulated exchange differences by showing the
amounts recognized by the parent entity and accumulated since the date of its transition to IFRSs. The
amendment also applies to associates and joint ventures that enjoy the same exemption under IFRS 1.

Under the amendment, a subsidiary that elects to apply paragraph Dié{a) of IFRS 1 may measure
accumulated foreign enchange differences using the amounts recognized in the consolidated financial

statements of the parent based on the parent’s date of transition to IFRSS, if no adjustments have been
made to consolidate and reflect the results of the business combination in which the parent acquired the
specified subsidiary. This amendment also applies to an associate or joint venture that elects to apply

paragraph D16{a) of IFRS 1.
Amendment fo (A5 47 - Agricul fuwre

This amendment eliminates the reguirement in paragraph 12 of |AS 41 that entities do not include bax-
related cash flows when measuring the falr value of assets that fall within the scope of 1AS 41,

These amendments did not have an impact an the financlal statements of the Campany since during the
period under review there were no assets, contingent assets, [fabilities and contingent llabilities within
the scope of these amendments.

The following applies for the annual reporting perieds beglnning on or after 1 January 2023:
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Tm——" Amendment to IFRS 17 - Insurance Contracts

The amendment to IFRS 17 Insurance Controcts are published In December 2021 and effective for the
reparting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013,
This standard replaces IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts, which currently allows for 8 wide range of accounting
practices for insurance contracts. IFRS 17 insurance Controcts will fundamentally change the way in which
insurance companies and groups operating in the Insurance business treat imsurance and investment
contracts with discretionary participation features.

The requirements of IFRS 17 Include elements of the European Solvency Il standard offering a
conceptually new approach to assessing solvency, taking into account the individual risks inherent in a
particular insurance company.

In 2023, the statements under IFRS 17 will be provided in parallel with IFRS 4.

To exclude manipulation and the impact of unreasonable changes In inswrance liabilities on the prudential
standards of insurance organizations, regulatory statements remain unchanged.

Amendment to IAS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates (illustrations of changes in accounting
policies and accounting estimatbes)

The 145 Board amends [AS B to define accounting estimates as “monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty”,

The accounting policies may réguire items in the financial statements to be measwred in a manner that
involves estimation uncertainty. That is, the accounting policies may reguire measuring such items in
monetary amounts that cannot be directly observable but must be measwred.

in this case, the entity makes an accounting estimate to schieve the goal set in the accounting policy.
Making accounting estimates involves the use of judgments or assumptions based on the latest reliable

information avallable,

Amendment to 145 12 - Income Tax - Deferred Tax Related to Assets and Liabilities Arising from a
Single Transaction

Amendments to |AS 12 income Tax published in May 2021 and effective for the reporting periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2023,

The Board introduced these Amendments to reduce discrepancies in how entities account for deferred
tax on transactions and events, such as leases and decommissioning liabilities, that result in initial
recognition of both assets and liabilities.

The amendments narrow the scope of the exceptions to initial recognition under IAS 12 so that the
exception no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

The amendments also clarify that the deduction for tax purposes of payments to settle liabilities is &
matter of judgment (in accordance with applicable tax laws] as to whether such deductions are consistent
with tax purposes for liabilities recognized in the financial statements (and interest expense) or related

assel (and interest expense).

This judgment is important in determining whether any temporary differences exist at the initial
recognition of an asset and liability,

Amendments to 1AS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements, IFRS Practice Statement No. 2 Making
Materiality Judgements and IAS 8 Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors
published in February 2021 and effective for the reparting periods beginning on or after 1 January
2023,

The amendments are intended to improve disclodures about accounting policies and to assist users of
financial statements in distinguishing between changes in accounting estimates and changes in accounting
policies,

Currently, the Bank assesses the impact of these amendments that they may have on disclosures of
accounting polickes of the Bank.
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S TR NET INTEREST INCOME

Interest income
Cash and cash eguivalents
Loans granted to customers

Financial assets at armortized cost
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income

Intereit expenses

Current accounts and deposits of customers
Fee on loans

Liability on lese

Liabilities on REPO contracts
Accounts and deposits of banks

5. FEE INCOME
Transfer transactions

Cash transactions

Guarantees and letters of credit
QOther

6. FEE EXPENSES

Obtained guarantees
Transfer transactions
Gther

7. NET PROFIT FROM FOREIGH CURRENCY TRAMSACTIONS

Dealing trardactions, net
Fareign exchange differences, net

B. PERSOMNMEL EXPENSES

Employes benefits
Taxes and withheldings from salary

2021 Fiirg|
5,507,196 1,524,344
1,844,581 1,998,819
2,434, 609 27,017

52,415 §1,280
10,847 801 5. 411,480
i4,826,650) {2,105,253)
(1,240,003) {587, 106)

135,349 (36, 006)

(2,70 {15,133}

(119 {139

{6,104, 881) {2,743,617F)
4,737,920 1,667 843
Flirrs 102
124,383 B7.573

13,278 10,302

1,767 1,300

11,711 9,179

161,137 119,354
plifr] 103
164,973 111,500
19,413 34,361
10,045 28, 1
234,435 174,061
033 021
£75,837 188,276
130,704 35,611
606, 541 323 B8T
rliF 011
911,797 THE 174
90,117 75,904
1,001,914 BE4,133
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9%, PROVISIONS FOR EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES

Financial sssets
Accounts Fimancial at falr value
Cash and and Loans asets at  through other
cath deposits  granted to  amortized comprehensive  Other
equivalents with banks _customers cost InCome asiets Total
a3 af 1 January
2021 1,631 Ba &5, 080 1,441 2% 1,682 T, 451
Farming
prowisions 12,99 | 44,184 4, bB4 LT £, 504 69,124
Recavering
provisions {13,058] {3 {18.054) 11,9425 1355)  (6,023)  (40,4564)
Farelgn exchange
difference 19 - 502 . . . b1
as of 11
December 2011 1,608 &0 1,711 3,187 436 2,551 99,754
Farmning
provizions 14,645 13 207,983 8,84 58 5,471 147,149
Recowvering
provisions (12,133} (4] (%0, b0 (B, Bh8) (156} (4,343} (125, 908)
Write-off d $ (12,928} * < (1682} {24,.470)
Faorelgn exchange
difference 77 2 [(H47) - . 9 (839)
as of 31
December 2012 4,217 91 185 814 3,162 136 2,206 195626

During 2022, provisions for contingent credit liabilities were formed in the amount of 13,433 thousand
tenge and provisions were recovered in the amount of 28,150 thousand tenge. (2021: formation of
provisions in the amount of 15,358 thousand tenge and recovery of provisions in the amount of 8,331

thousand tenge).
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0.

11.

OTHER GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
. 10l 2021
Depreciation and amortization 101,519 197,007
Software support 70,893 Th, 463
Tames, fees and ather compulsory payments 43, 2Th 51,953
Communicathon services and information services 53,368 51,007
Processing serdices 25,983 15,550
Operating expenses 26,714 12,930
Membership fees 25,00 16,748
IFSUFEACE EXpEnEES 13,606 15,908
Professional senices T AT 11,379
Representathon expenses 14,360 5,779
Security T.513 7443
Office supplies 4,31 7,345
Transportation expenses 7,459 6,369
Advertisement and marketing 2,314 5,364
Writing off property, plant and equipment 14,657 4,729
Expenses for operating Lease 3,189 3,967
Travelling expenses 5,087 1,830
Repair and maintenance B, 825 1,m:
Other 58,074 50,570
511,579 489,357
INCOME TAX EXPENSES

The Bank makes tax calculations for the current period based on data af tax accounting reconds kept in
accordance with the requirements of the tax laws of the Republic of Kazakhstan, Income tax expenses

for the years ended 11 December 2022 and 2011 are shown below.

022 2021
Imcarme LAxX expenies
Reporting period (262,500) {158,070
Adjustment to prior period 6,513 16,182
Changes in deferred taxes resulting from occurrence and recovery of 1,41
temporary differences 6,090
Total income Lax expense (254,508) (135798}

The income tax rate in the Republic of Kazakhstan was sel at 20% during 2022 and 2021. Income on

government securities and certain other securities is not subject to income Lax.

Due to the fact that certain expenses are not accounted for tax purposes,
income, the Bank has certain permanent Lax differences.

Calculation of the effective income Lax rate far the years

a5 well as there s non-taxable

ended 11 December 2022 and 2021:

021 2021

Profit before income tax 1,625,853 1,540,847
jncoeme tax calculated in accordance with prevailing income tax rate 715,11 308,169
Won-taxable income from transactions with securities (497,409} 1177,659)
Other non-deductible expenses) (income) 16, 746 5,268
154,508 1315, 798

7.0% &.8%

Effective Income tax rate

28



e
| QATACET

%

An=
-l i

—

12.

Ll?._ljﬂ SHINHAMN BANK KAZAKHSTAN JSC

|MOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 31 December 2012
/ fthousand Kazakhstan benge)

beferred tax assets and Habilities

The temporary differences arising between the value of assets and liabilities reported in the financial
statements and the amounts used to calculate the tax base give rise to deferred tax assets as of 31
December 2027 and liabilities as of 31 December 2021,

The change in the amount of temporary differences for the years ended 11 Dacember 2022 and 2021 can
be presented as follows,

Balance asof 1 Reportedin  Reported  Balance as of 31

el January 2022 _ profitor loss _in equity December 2022 _

Progerty, plant and equipment and 1A {3L,459) 19, 567 . (12,892}

Other liabilities 75,952 {18,088) . 57,864
43,493 1,479 - 44 972

Balance 85 of 1 Reported in  Reported  Balance as of 31

2021 January 2021 profit or loss  in equity December 2021
Property, plant and equipment and 1A 140,818) B, 359 . (32,45%)
Other (iabilities T&, 321 [2,269) - 75,952

17,403 6,090 . 43,493
CASH AMD CASH EQUIVALENTS

31.12.2032 31.12.2021

Cash on kand 450 500 Ta7 S0z
Hiostro accounts with RK NB 6,547 850 2,994,636
Hostro sccaunts with other banks

- having credit rating A- bo A+ 4,057 612 3. 354 167

- having crealt rating BE- to 88+ 73,800 98 414

- having credit roting B- . ER-

- nof rated 124,509 10,987
Total Nostro accounts with other banks 4,276,021 3,505,466
Cash equivalents
Term deposits with RE NB 6B, 783 652 7,411,760
Provision for expected credit Losses (4,217 {1,608)
Total cash and cash sguivalents B0, 453, 806 44 679,156

The credit ratings are presented in accordance with the standards of the rating agency Standard & Poor's
or similar standards of other international rating agencies.

Cash mnd cash eguivalents are not past due,
Requirements for minimum reserves

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, in accordance with the resolution of the RE N8, the
minimum provision requirements are caloulated as the average of the sums of certain shares of various
groups of labilities of the Bank for twenty-elght calendar days. The banks are required to comply with
these requirements by rmaintaining average reserve assets {in the form of cash on hand in national
currency and balances on correspondent accounts of the Bank with the Mational Bank in national
currency) in an amount equal to or exceeding the aveérage minimum requirements. As of 31 December
7022, the minimum reserve amounts to 2,586,018 thousand tenge (31 December 1021: 1,410,590

thousand tenge).
Concentration of cash and cash equivalents

as of 31 December 2022, the Bank has two banks (31 December 2021: 2 banks) each holding mare than
10% of the Bank's equity. The total balances of the indicated banks as of 31 December 2022 amount to
79,789,114 thousand tenge (31 December 2021: 43,718,313 thowsand tenge).

29



G ﬁ"| SHINHAN BANE KAZARHSTAM J5C
Lﬁ_ NOTES TO THE FINAMCIAL STATEMENTS for the yvear ended 31 December 2022
ALEACE fthclusand Kaozakhsztan tenge)

,|1,||=-

Cash restricted n use
Provision for expected credit losses
Total accounts and deposits with banks

o™'Y3 ACCOUNTS AND DEPOSITS WITH BANKS

33021 3112200
182,301 177,042
(91} {80}
182,812 176,582

&5 of 31 December 2021 and 11 December 2021, accardingly, the Bank had no deposits that would exceed

10% of the Bank"s equity,

14, FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHEMSIVE INCOME
11,12.2022 31.12.2021
Held by the Bank
Dbt financial instrumenis:
- treasury bonds of the Minfsiry of Finonce of the Republic of
Kgrakhstan 970, 269 1,281, 447
Total financial assets 970,269 1,861,647
bz of 11 December 2022 and 2021, these financial assets are not past due,
15. LOANS GRANTED TO CUSTOMERS
31122022 31.12.2021
Loans granted 10 corporate customers
- Logns granted to lorge-scale busimesses - B2, 406
« Logns granbed ia small and medium-sized businesses 13,912,143 11,522 541
Total loans granted to corporate customers 13,812,143 12,844,947
Loans granted to various customers
- Consumer credits § 6498 559 7,135,295
Total loans grasted to various customers 8,698 55% 7,335,195
Pravision for impairement {1B5,814) (91,912}
Total loans granted to customers less provision 12,414,888 20,088,330
(@) Quality of loans granted to customers

The table below provides information an quality of loans granted to customers as of 11 December 2022

Loarns
before
provision
for

_Impairment

Loans granted o Corporate customers
- e
- post gwe fess than 30 doys

- past due mare Ehan 30 doys
Total loans granted Lo corporate
CuStomers

Loars granted to various customers
- undise
- past due less than 90 days

13,647,947
Ty, ol
157,098

13,912,143

8,643,076
47,661

Loss from
impairment with
respect to total

Provision Loans less toans befare
for provision for provision for
impairment  Impairment impairment
{24,560} 11620, 385
107,098
(137 0981
{183,680 13,718,483 .
(1,912} 4,841, 164
{f42] 47 421 =
30
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ISR past due more thon 90 days

Toetal lpans granted to various
Eustamers

The table below provides information on quality of loans granted to customers as of 31 December 2021:

Loans granted bo Corporate customers
- ungdue
- past due less thon 20 days

- past due mare than §0 days
Total loans granted to corporate
Customers

Loans granted to varous customers
- undue
- past due less than 90 days

- past due more than 90 days
Total loans granted to various
customers

7, 820 . -]
8698, 559 {1,154} B, 696, 405
Loss from
Loamns imipalrment with
before respect to total
provishon Fronlshom Loans s Ioans before
for for pravision far provisicn for
impafrment  impalrment  Impairment impairment
12,644 591 {15,204) 12,629,288
1,007 - .ai
199,345 (76, 131) 123,114
12,844,947 (91,434) 12,753,513
7,099 547 {dd2] F. 298 125
30,081 34) 30,045
5 47 - 5 647
7,335,195 {4 7E} 7334 817

In 2022, the provision for impairment includes provisions for individually measured loans in the amount
of 172,849 thousand tenge (31 December 2021: 76,131 thousand tenge), provision for collective
impairment in the amount of 12,965 thousand tenge (31 December 2021; 13,781 thousand tenge).

As of 31 December 2022, the credit portfiolio has incluged the loans granted to corporate and various
customers the terms of which have been changed and which would otherwise be past due or impaired
amount to 1,172,333 thousand tenge (31 December 20217: 253,057 thousand tenge).

(b} Estimates of expected credit losses

For issued loans, the calculation of expected credit losses takes into account the possible estimated
effect of changes in macroeconomic parameters on forecast cash flows, migration of collective loans and

codlateral coverage.

Wihen measuring the level of credit losses, the Bank uses sound forward-looking information, which is
based on assumptions about the future movement of various economic factors and how these factors will

affect each other.

The key inputs wied to estimate expected credit Llosses include the following:

" Probability of default (PD] is a key input in measuring the level of credit losses. The probability
of default i an estimate over a given time horizon the calculation of which includes historical data,
assumptions and expectations of future conditions,

The probability of default on individual loans of corporate, small and medium-sized businesses is assessed
using an internal rating model based on the quantitative and qualitative characteristics of a borrower,
The probability of default on loans granted that are measured on a collective basis is caloulated on the
basis of historical data by applying the migration matrices.
. Loss given defsult [LGD} is an estimate of the loss that will arise in case of default. It is based
on a difference between the cash flows due under the contract and those that a lender would expect to
receive taking Into account the cash flows from the collateral,

The LGD for loans granted that are measured on & collective basis 15 calculated on the basis of an
assessment of the recoverability of labilities in the event of disposal of a collateral using discount periods
corresponding to the terms of disposal of collateral.

. The amount of a credit exposure at risk of default (EAD) i an estimate of risk at a future date
of defaull taking into account expected changes in risk after the reporting date, including repayments

il
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H\“'“— — of principal and interest, as weil as expected drawdowns of approved credit funds, The Bank's approach
ta modelling this indicator takes into account the expected changes In the outstanding amount during
the maturity period that are permitted by the current contractual terms such as amartization profiles,
prepayments or overpayments, changes in the use of undrawn amounts on credit [1abilitles, and measures
taken to mitigate risks before the default. To assess credit exposures at risk of default, the Bank uses

maodels that reflect the characteristics of the respective portfolios.

The ECL provisions for loans granted in the financial statements have been determined based on the
prevailing economic and political conditions. The Bank cannot predict what changes in conditions will
pcewr in the Republic of Kazakhstan and what effect these changes will have on the adequacy of

pravisions for ECLs of financial assets In future periods.
{c) Analysis of collateral and other credit enhancements

il Loans granted to corporale customers

The loans granted to corporate customers are subject to imdividual measurement and impairment testing.
The averall creditworthiness of a corporate customer s usually the most important indicator of the
quality of the |oan granted to it. However, the collateral means additional guarantees, and the Bank

usually asks corporate barrowers to provide the same.
The tables below provide information on collateral and other credit enhancements for loans to corporate

pustomers by type of collateral:
Carrying Falr walue of  Fair value of
amaunt of collateral collateral
loans. measured at | measured at 8 Hob measured
granted to  the reparting  date of loan fair value of
31 December 2012 CUStOMmEeTs date issuance collateral

Loans with na individual Indicotars of impairment
Corporate guarantess (provided by related

parthes having credit rating of A- or higher) 4 B35 6E3 . - 4 818 683

Other guarantess (provided by companies

hawing credit rating of & or higher| . 2

Immavable property 1,727 A58 &, 77,858 £ -

Cash and deposits 52,940 57,940 - -

Other codlateral 4,250,751 - 4,250,752 3
11,860,233 1,780,758 4,150,752 4,818,483

Loans with individual fngicatars of

impairment

Corporate guaraniee |provided by related

party having credit rating of & Lo As| 131,698 - 131,698

Immevable property 183,572 183,572 . .

Other collatersl 1,452 980 - 1,452 980 .

1,868 250 183,572 1,452 980 131,458
Total leans granted to corporits
CustoimiErs 13,718 483 1,964,370 3,703,732 3,060, 381
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Carryimg  Fair value af Falr value of
pmaunt of collateral collsieral
[T meaiured at meaiured at a Hot measured
granted to  khe reparting date of loan falr value of
31 December T021 custGmers date [ELEE ) collateral
Loans with no individus! Indicators af Impafrment
Corporate guarartees (provided by
related parties having credit rating of
e or higher) 4,619,470 4 619470
Qther guarantees (provided by
companies hawing credit rating of Aor
higher) 4T, 117 : BT 1T
Immavable property 1 487,304 1,487 306 -
Other callateral 4 b0. 0% 4,540,054 .
12,414,029 2,487,304 4,640,036 5,286,687
Lomns with Ingividual inddcators of
impairmend 1k, 265 PAT L
Corporate guarantee (provided by
redated party hawing credit rating of A
to As) 123,115 123,115 -
Oher collateral 339, 484 . 123,215 216,269
12,753,513 2 487 306 4 763,151 5 507 9%

The tables above exclude the cost of overcollateralization.

Because the ability to recover undue and non-impaired loans granted to corporate customers depends
in a greater degree on the creditwarthiness of & borrawer than on the value of collateral, the Bank does
not always estimate the value of collateral at each reparting date.

For most loans, the fair value of the collateral was measured at the reporting date. Information about

the value of collateral is presented depending on the date on which it was measured, if such a
measurement is made.

For loans with several types of collateral, information is disclosed by the type of collateral that s the
miast significant for collateral measurement.,

Loans granted [o variows customers

The loans granted to various customers are mabnly collaterized with residential properties, According to
the Bank's policy, the ratio between the loan amount and the value of the collateral on the date of loan
issuance should be Umited ko 60%.

The tables below provide information on the collateral of loans granted to various customers:

Fair value of Falr value of
Carrying collateral - for calintersl - For
amount of collateral cablateral Hot measured
loans granted maasured at the measured &t a date  fair value of
b customars reporting date of loan issuance collateral
3 December 1023
Uredae 8,51, 164 8641 164
Dreerdue e 6%, 241 55,241 .
Total lsans granbed to varous
customers B &%6 405 B 696 405
31 December 3031
Undue 1.099 415 7,199,115
verdug 15,492 15,691
Total loans grarted vo various
CUSTOMmars T334 817 7,334 B17 .

The tables above exclude the cost of overcollateralization,
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Analysis of loan portfolio by branches of econamy and geographical areas

The |oans were granted mainly to customers conducting activities in the Republic of Kazakhstan in the
following sectors of the economy:

31.12.2022 31121021

Loans granted to various customers 8,696,405 7,334,817
Finances 5,050,816 5 727,185
Trade 1,BE8, 754 1,805,189
‘Warehousing and auxiliary transportation activities 716,187 1,014,334
Prowishon of individual services 902,366 758,143
Congtruction 714,963 609,174
Other professional, scientific and technical activities GB0, 166 507 &5%5
Lease and hiring 317,505 447 170
I i property TR, 245 481,915
Transport vehicles 450,975 136,155
Advertising activities 116,810 185,683
Specialized construction works b6, 409 T8, 649
Food stuff production 212,521 71,181
Computer programming, cansultations and other related services = 40,329
Printing and reproducing recorded materials 3,005 4,643

Electrical equipment manufacturing
Inforrmation and communication (Manufacturing computers,
electranic and optical products]

Other 1,717,739 634 407
22,424,888 20,088,330

Concentration of loans granted to customers

hs of 31 December 2022, the Bank has one borrower whose loan balances excead 10% of equity (31
December 2021 ane Barrgwer), The total balances on loans of the specified borrower as of 31 December
2022 amount to 3,420,403 thousand tenge (31 December 2021: 3,414,724 thousand tenge).

FINAMCIAL ASSETS AT AMORTIZED COST
31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Held by the Bank
= Treaswy bills of the Ministry of Finance of the Republic of
Karakhstan 72097 TE99, 415
« Wotes of the Natlonal Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan 13,789,861 1,926, 382
Pravislon for expected credit losses (3,162 13,187}

20,907,670 5,821,790

The full amount of investments held bo maturity is represented by treasury bills of the Ministry of Finance
of the Republic of Kazakhstan and notes of the Mational Bank of the Republic of Kazakhstan in the tenge
and having the credit rating of BBE-,

In accordance with the Bank's investment policy and business maodel, the management has the intent and
ability to hold these securities to maturity, Officially published price quotations for similar debt
securitles with identical terms are available on the local stock exchange.

For treasury transactions, the Bank calculates expected credit losses on a financial asset based not only
on the cwrent assessments of the credit quality of a counterparty/ssuer at the reporting date, but also
taking into account the possible deterioration of the financial condition due to the influence of
unfavourable macroscondmic factars in the operating environment of a counterparty [issuer) in the
future. In particular, the Level of provisions for treasury transactions is affected by the rating outlook
{positive, stable, negative) assigned by the international rating agencies, which affects the probability
of default (PD).

The probability of default on treasury transactions is determined according to the data of Default Study
from the international rating agencles (SBP, Fitch, Moody's), which publish tabular data with the values

14
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4f default probabilities, Default probabilities are kept up to date and updated from time to time as
default statistics are updated.

The level of loss given default (LGD) for treasury transactions is determined according to the data of the
Default Study from the international rating sgencies {5&P, Fitch, Moody's) and depends on the type of
debt on a financial asset: senior secured/ unsecured, subordinated, sovereign. LGD can also be adjusted
if the asset is secured, as well as if there are indicators of impairment of a financial asset (Stage I or

Stage 1),

NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

45 of 31 December 1022, the carrying amount of nan-current assets held for sale amounted to 155,691
thousand tenge (11 December 2021: 155,691 thousand tenge). Mon-current assets held for sale are assets
that the Bank has accepted as repayment of debts on loans granted to customers. The Bank has
developed an implementation plan based on which the disposal of assets is planned within the next 12
manths. Mon-current assets held for sale were recorded at the acquisition cost detarmined at the time

of the auction,
PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The Bank leases an office on the basis of a lease contract without the right to early termination, The
term of the lease is &0 manths, with the option of extending the lease term, kn addition, the Bank ceased
to lease the vehicles In March 2021. Lease contracts do not include provisions for contingent lease
payment. The carrying amount of right-of-use assets of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2012
amounted to 222,177 thousand tenge (31 December 2021 215,417 thousand tenge). Depreciation of the

right-of-use assets for the year ended 31 December 2022 included in depreciaticn in the statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income amounted to KIT 52,087 thousand (2021: KIT 48,668

thousand). When calculating liabilities on lease, an assumption was used at & discount rate af 12.00%.

Future undiscounted lease payments payable under long-term leases by maturity are presented as
follows:

31.12.2022 31.12.2021
Up to 11 months 109, 384 20,857
1-5 years 155,241 307,943
Total 364,631 393,845
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“19. OTHER ASSETS

11.12.2022 31.12.2021

Spot transaction claims 138,795 1,295,600
Settlemnent of payments on card accounts 55,171 15,044
Charged penalties and fines 5,159 1,6M
DOther assets 3,604 1,849
Provision for expected credit loises {1,724) (2,104
Total other financial assets 101,308 1,312,064
Deferrals &, 187 T4, 559G
Prepaid lease 10,124 19 443
Security deposit 4,117 4,017
Other prepayments & 511 &, 445
Other taxes prepaid in budget 3,5%4 1,428
Recelvables from employees 1412 1,546
Dther assets 12,711 11,238
Prowtsion for expected credit losses [4&2) (447
Total other non-financial assats 85,376 150,785
Total other assets 286,681 1,461 B49

20. ACCOUNTS AND DEPOSITS OF BANKS

1.

31.12.2022 J1. 142011
Viostro accounts 79,.50% T, 157
79,500 798,297

b5 of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, accordingly, the Bank had no deposits with banks
exceading 10% of the Bank's equity.

CURRENT ACCOUNTS AND DEPOSITS OF CUSTOMERS

31.12.2012 3111202
Current accounts and deposits on demand
- Retail custormers 3,166,024 1,722 916
- Corporate cushomers 21,747,434 11,048,138
14,907 458 12,771,054
Term deposits
« Refoll custamers B.330.1%2 5,600,833
« Corporate customers 49,400, 142 35,400,518
— SN7I0,354 41,001,171
82,627 E137 51,771,215
Blocked amounts

Az of 31 December 2021, the deposits of the Bank's customers in the amount of 80,613 thousand tenge
(31 Decemnber 2021: 109,473 thousand tenge) serve as collateral for liabilities on loans granted to
customers and of(-balance credit instrument pravided by the Bank,

Concentration of current accounts and deposits of customers

As of 31 December 2022, the Bank has six customers (31 December 2021 six], whose accounts and
deposits exceed 10% of equity. The total balance as of 31 December 2077 amounted to 61,682,716
thousand tenge (31 Decenber 2021; 40,849,978 thousand tenge).

n
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gm0 29 LOANS FROM BANKS

In December 2021, in accordance with Master Agreement Mo, 1 dated 22.12.2008 made with Shinhan
Bank J5C {Seoaul, Republic of Korea), the Bank obtained short-term loans:

10,000,000 US dollars maturing on 02.02,2023 at fixed interest rate of 4.33%; and
20,000,000 US dallars maturing on 27.02.2023 at fixed interest rate of 4.65%.

31,12.2022 3.12.2021
Balance &t the beginning of the year -
Receipts 13,833,000
Other changes 351N
13,888,271
23. LOANS FROM INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL ORGANIZATIONS
31.12.20212 31,1100
Loan from EBRD B,230,5%4 4757 176
8,230,594 4,797,178

in 2016, the Bank entered into 2 loan agreements with the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development:
Loan Agreement Mo, 47953 dated 28.06.2016 lor the support of small and medium-sized businesses
in the tenge in the amount equivalent to 15,000,000 US dollars, maturing on 13.01.2023; and

Loan Agresment Mo. 47954 dated 28.06.2016 for the development of “Women in Business' project
in the tenge in the amount equivalent to 5,000,000 US dollars, maturing on 25.01.2023.

Each loan agreement provides for 2 tranches, In accordance with the terms of the lpan agreement, it 15
passible to recetve each tranche in two instalments. The first tranche and the first instalment aof the
second tranche were recefved during 2017 in the tenge, the remaining portion was received in 2014,

in 2020, the Bank signed 2 more loan agreements with the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development:

Loan Agreement Ho. 50791 dated 13.02.2020 for the support of small and medium-sized s inesses
in the tenge in the amount equivalent to 10,000,000 U5 dollars, with & maturity of the first tranche
until 79.09.2025, second tranche - until 29.04.2027; and

Loan Agreement No, 50792 dated 13.02.2020 for the development of “Women in Business” project
in the tenge in the amount equivalent to 5,000,000 US dollars, with a maturity date of the first

tranche wntil 29.09.2025, second tranche - until 1%.04, 2027,
The first tranche was received in 2020 and the second tranche - in 2022,
in 2021, the Bank signed 1 mare loan agreement with the European Bank for Reconstruction and
Development.
Loan Agreement No. 52817 dated 10.12.2021 under the Green Economy Financing Facility (GEFF)
program In the tenge In the amount equivalent to 5,000,000 US dollars, maturing on 24.06.2027,
The full amount was recelved during 2022 in the tenge.

jnterest on the loan i charged at a floating rate and is paid an a quarterly basls In accordance with the
terms of the agreernent. AL the end of the reporiing periad, the interest rate under the Loan Agreements
dated 28.06.2016 was 19.75%, and under the Loan Agreements dated 13.02. 2020 it was 20.75%, and under

the Loan Agreements dated 10.12.2021 it was 22.65%.

The Bank i5 cbliged to comply with certain financial obligations to comply with the terms ol the
fundrafsing agreements presented above. These obligations include stipulated raties used for financial
performance. The Bank did not viclate any of these obligations as of 31 December 2027 and 2021,
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Movements of lHabilities due to financing activities

The table below shaws the changes in liabilities as a result of financial activities, including changes due
to cash flows and changes nob related to cash flows. Liabilities dus to financing activities are those
liabilities the cash flows of which have been or will be classified as cash flows from financing activities
in the statement of cash flows.

31.12. 0022 11.11.2021
Balance at the beginning of the year 4,747,176 6,784,218
Drspasal (2,196,738) (1,978,105)
Other changes 47,576 i8,937)
8,230,594 4,797,176
" Dther changes include interest expenses and pald interest,
OTHER LIABILITIES
31.12,2022 31.12.2011
Liabilities on lease 286,796 102,151
Liabilities on sport transactions 138,624 1,285 185
Payables from suppliers B4, 706 112,368
Banking transactions payable 34,210 19,492
Cither liabilities 3,169 5,059
Total other financial liabilitles 357,505 1,734,255
settlement of taxes and other compulsory payments in budget 125,910 B7.543
Peyables to emplovess 58,812 50,156
Provision for leaves 36,130 14,152
Qther trangit accounts 13,807 11,651
Cther [1abilities 2 845 2,998
Total other non-financial llabilities 257,514 176,500
Tetal other liabilities £15,019 1,910,755
ISSUED CAPITAL

Issued and additional paid-up capital

The authorized, issued and autstanding issued

ital of the Bank consists of 1,002,872 ordi shares
(2021: 1,002,872 ardinary shares). A par valus S s e

of all shares amounts to 10,000 tenge.

!-hldn_er; of ordinary shares are entitled to receive dividends as they are declared, as well as they have
the right Lo one vote per share at annual and general meetings of shareholders of the Bank,

Earnings per share

3123022 I1.12, 2022
Het earnings for the year 3,371,345 1,405,049
Quantity of issuwed ordinary shares 1,002,872 1‘|:]'|:I1I BT
Earnings per share o
Basic and diluted earnings per share, tenge 3,361.69 1,401.03
The Bank's ordinary shares are not traded in public market, however, the Bank h
' ' a5 independently chasen
to disclose Information on the net earnings per sh re caleul
YT il Ings per sha ated In accordance with the requirermnents of
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Provision for revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive ineame
that are available for sale

Provision for revaluation of financial assets available for sale includes accumulated net change in fair
value until derecognition,

Dividend

The Bank’s ability to declare and pay dividends is determined in accordance with the requirements of
the legislation of the Republic of Kazakhstan,

Dividend on ardinary shares s recognized as a distribution of retained earnings for the period far which

It is accrued. At the time of issue of the financial staterments for 2022, no dividend has been declared
wit (2021 no dividend has been declared),

RISK MAMAGEMENT

Risk management undeslies banking activities and is an essential element of the operating activities of

the Bank. Market risk, credit risk and liguidity risk are the main risks that the Bank faces in the COLET5e
of its activities.

Risk management policies and procedures

The Bank's risk management policy is almed at identifying, analysing and managing the risks to which the
Bank is expased, at setting risk limits and related controls, as well as at continuously assessing the level
of risks and thelr confermance to the established limits. Risk management policies and procedures are

reviewed on a regular basis to reflect changes in the market environment, banking products and services
offered. and emerging best practices,

The Board of Directors of the Bank is responsible for the proper functioning of the risk management

control system, for managing key risks and approving risk management policies and procedures, as well
as for approving major transactions,

The Management Board of the Bank Is responsible for monitaring and implementing risk mitigation
measures, as well as ensuring that the Bank conducts activities within established risk limits. The
Management Board of the Bank is responsible for averall risk management and contral of compliance
with the requirements of the current legislation, as well as overseeing the application of general

principles and methods for identifying, assessing, managing and reporting both financial and non-
financial risks.

Credit and market risks and liquidity risk are managed and controlled by the Credit Committee and the

Committee for Assets and Liabilities Management [CALM) both at the level of the portfolio as a whale
and at the level of individual transactions,

Both external and intevnal risk factors are identified and managed within the organization, Particular

attention is paid to identifying the entire list of risk factors and determining the level of sufficiency of
current risk minimization procedures,

in addition to the standard analysls of credit and market risks, the Management Board of the Bank
monitors financlal and non-financial risks by holding regular meetings with operating units in order to
obtain an expert oplnion on individiual management Boards.

Market rish

Market risk is the risk of changes in the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument due to
changes in market prices. Market risk consists of forelgn exchange risk, interest rate risk, as well as other
price rsks, Market risk arises from open positions in interest, currency and equity financial instruments

that are affected by general and specific market maovements and changes in the level of market price
volatility.

The objective of market risk management is to manage and control that exposure 1o market risk does
not go beyond acceptable parameters, while ensuring the optimization of the return received far the
risk taken, The CALM headed by the Chairman is responsible for managing market and liguidity risks. The

CALM approves market and liquidity risk limits based on recommendations from the Risk Managemeant
Department.
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The Bank manages market risk by setting limits on the open position in relation to the amount of the

portfolio for individual financial instruments, the timing of changes in interest rates, Currency position,
loss limits and regular monitoring of their compliance with the results to be reviewed and approved by

the management Board.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will change
due to changes In market interest rates. The Bank is exposed to the effects of fluctuations in the
prevailing market interest rates on its financial position and cash flows. Such fluctuations may inCrease
the level of interest margin, but may also reduce it, or, in the event of an unexpected change in interest
rates, lead to losses.

Interest rate risk is primarily managed by monitoring changes in interest rates.
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Average effective interest rates

The following table presents average effective interest rates for interest-bearing assets and liabilities as
of 31 December 2022 and 2021:

2022 2021
Average effective Average effective
Interest rate, % interest rate, %

Tenge  USdollar  Tenge US dollar

Interest-bearing assets

Cash and cash equivalents 15.54 1.34 9.18 0.18
Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive 1.4 i 437
incorne ; '
Loans granted to customers 16.15 417 13.1% 4.07
Financial assets at amortized cost 1164 . 6,95
interest-bearing Habilities
Accomnts and depasits of banks
- Term depasits
Current accounts and depasits of customers - . . .
- Term deposits 10.97 0.56 b.62 0.39

Loans from international finandal crganizations 12.1 . 875
Loanrs fram banks . 4,55

Analysis of sensitivity to changes in interest rates

Interest rate risk management based on interest rate review timing is complemented by sensitivity
monitaring of financial assets and labilities. The analysis of sensitivity of net income or loss and equity
of the Bank (less taxes) to changes in interest rates (interest rate review risk) based on a simplified
scenario of a parallel shift of yield curves by 100 basis points towards increasing or decreasing interest
rates and renegotiated positions on Interest-bearing assets and liabilities effective as of 31 December
2022 and 2021 can be presented as follows;

2021 FiiFy]
Profit or loss Equity Profit or loss Equrity

100 basis paint parallel shift toward

decreasing rates (75,588) [2.615) 7.717) & 480
100 basis point parallel shife toward
increasing rates 75,588 (3.277) 1.7 [ 14,5688)

The analysis of sensitivity of profit or loss and equity to changes in fair value of financial assets at fair
value through other comprehensive income/available for sale due to changes in interest rates {based on
positions effective as of 31 December 2022 and 2021 and a simplified scenario of a 100 basis point parallel
shift of yield curves toward increasing or decreasing inteérest rates) can be presented as follows:

012 2021

Profitor loss  _ Equity  Profit or loss Equity
100 basks point parallel shift toward
decreasing rates ‘ 2,414 . 9 &80
100 basis point parallel shift toward
fncreasing rates - 3,177 = [H.HIL
Foreign exchange risk

The Bank has assets and llabilitles denominated in several foreign currencies.

Foreign exchange risk is the risk of & change in the fair value or future cash flaws of a financial instrument
due to changes in the currency exchange rates, Despite the fact that the Bank hedges its exposure to
forelgn exchange risk, such transactions do not match the definition of a hedging relationship in
accordance with the IFRSs.

The structure of financial assets and liabilities in terms of currency as of 31 December 2027 can be
represented as follows:

44



sl

SHINHAN BANK KAZAKHSTAMN JSC

_ HOTES TO THE FIMAMCIAL STATEMENTS for the year ended 11 December 2022
. (thousand Kazokhstan tenge)

T U5 dollar E T'un:;m

] uro

ASSETS nge : e Cther Total
Cach and cash equivalents 35,896 621 44 T 36T 137,559 11,998 TE1  BO0,453 808
Accounts and deposits with

banks 94,508 87,904 : - 182,813
Financial assets at FYTOCI 970,269 - . - 970 189
Loans granted to customers 21,014,114 410,774 11,414 BB8
Financial assets at amortized

cost 20,907 670 - - ' - 30,97 670
Other financial assers 54,645 146,661 - . 201,306
Total assets TR 938,217 44,962,706 227 559 11,998 261 125,140,751
LIABILITIES

Accounis and depoasits af

banks 41 B&3 33,711 4,123 75, 509
Current sccounts and

deposits of customers 51,306,269 31,059,071 250,028 12,474 EZ,627 812
Loans from intermational

financial erganizations B,230,5% - 8,230,594
Loans from banks 13,888,271 - 131,888,271
Other inancial labilities 431,761 3,661 B2 - 557,505
Total Habilities 60,070,308 45,046,726 154,113 12,424 - 105,383, 491
Met position 19,867,919 (84,0200 (16,674) (426) 61 19,757,060

The structure of financial assets and liabilities in terms of currency as of 31

Becember 2022 can be

represented as follows:
Bussian

Tenge US dollar  Eura rouble Cither Total
ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents 28,102,960 16,481 856 50,393 43 514 4311 44 679,156
Accounts and depasits with
banks 94,950 Be 032 - - - 176,982
Financlal assets at FVTOCI 1,261,647 - . - = 1,261,647
Loans granted to customers 19,727,152 361,178 - - - 20,088,330
Fimancial azeets at amortized
cost 9,822,790 - - - - 98127190
Other financial adsety 448,798 853,284 - - = 1,312,064
Total assets 59,458,197 17,788,332 50,193 43 514 433 TT 340 949
LIABILITIES
Accourts and deposits of
barks 48,735 146,814 2,748 - 798,297
Current accounts and
deposits of custormers 16,843,263 16,781,005 119,999 5, 863 - 53,771,115
Loans from international
financial organizations 4,797,176 . . - - A48T 176
Other financial liabilities 1,201,559 531,578 i - 1,734,255
Total lHabilitles 41,510,770 17,462,487 122,828 5868 - 61,101,953
Met position 15,947,527 325 845 (72,415) 37 646 4313 16,239,016

The impact on pre-tax profit and equity based on the value of financial assets is calculated using
exchange rate volatility analysis. As of 31 December 2027 and 31 December 2021, according to the
management of the Bank, the passible movement of the currency rate is 15%,

A depreciation of the tenge as shown below against the currencies shown as of 11 December 2022 and
2021 would increase (decrease) equlty and profit or loss by the amounts shown below. This analytical
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infarmation is presented less tax and is based on fluctuations in currency exchange rates, which the Bank
corsidered as reasonably possible at the end of the reporting perlod, The analysis was carried out on the
assumption that all other variables, in particular interest rates, remain unchanged.

1022 2021
Profit or loss Equity Profit or foss Equity
15% increase in US dollar/ tenge rate (10,082} (10,082) 39,101 19,101
15% increase in Euro/tenge rate (3,201} {3,201} {8,652} {8,692}
15% increase in Russian rouble/tenge rate i51) (31} 4,518 4,518

c) Credit risk
Credit risk is the risk of financial loss arising from a default on obligations by a borrower or counterparty
of the Bank. The Bank manages credit risk (on recognized financial assets and unrecognized contractual
liabilities) through the application of approved policies and precedures, including requirements for
setting and keeping the credit risk concentration limits, as well as threugh the establishment of a Credit
Committee, whose functions include active monitoring of credit risk. The credit policy is reviewed and
approved by the Board of Ddrectors.

The credit policy establishes:

s procedures for consideration and approval of credit applications;

s methods for assessing the creditwarthiness of borrowers (corporate customers and individuals);
* methads for assessing the creditworthiness of counterparties;

= methods for assessing the proposed collateral;

® requirements for credit documentation; and

» procedures for ongeing monitoring of loans and other products bearing credit risk.

Loan applications from corporate customers are drafted by the respective to customer ACCHMNT Managers
and then passed for consideration by the Lending Division, which is responsible for the portfolio of loans
granted to legal entities. The reports of analysts of this Division are based on a structural analysis of the
business and financial position of a borrower. Applications and reports are then independently reviewed
by the Risk Management Department, which issues the second opinion; at the same time, the proper
satisfaction of the requirements of the credit policy is checked. The Credit Committee approves loan
applications based on documents provided by the Lending Division, Integrated Security Department,
Collateral Valuation Department, Legal and Risk Management Departments.

The Bank constantly maonitors the status of individual loans and reassesses the solvency of its borrowers
on a regular basis. Reassessment procedures are based on an analysis of the borrowers financial
statements at the latest reporting date or other information provided by the borrower itself or otherwise
cbtained by the Bank, At the same time, the decision to grant each loan is made by the Credit Committee
after all the necessary procedures have been completed, which in turn allows controlling the entire
credit process with a small number of incoming applications,

In addition to analysing individual borrowers, the Risk Management Department assesses the loan
portfalio as a whole In terms of concentration of loans and market risks.

The maximum level of credit risk is generally reflected in the carrylng amount of financial assets in the
statement of financlal position and in the amount of unrecognized contractual liabilities. The ability to
offset assets and liabilities fs not essential to minimize potential credit rigk,

Organizations in the banking sector are generally exposed to credit risk arising from financial assets and
contingent lHabilities, The Bank's credit risk 15 concentrated in the Republic of Kazakhstan, The degree
of credit risk is subject to constant monitoring in order to ensure compliance with credit limits and
creditworthiness in accordance with the risk management policy approved by the Bank.

The maximum level of exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets at the reporting date can be
presented as follows:
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\_rinron/ 31.12.2022 31.12.2021

:i::id cash eguivalents 80,453, 504 44,679, 156
176,982
Accounts and deposits with banks iﬂ.:l: e
Financial assets at falr value through ather comprehensive income o ::Elun m.u.ﬂl o
Loans granted U0 CUSOMErs Vi, " Jm
Financial aisets at amortized cost Iﬂ.:g:.':-;z ?.:::.m
Other financial agsets i Ars
Total maximum exposure to credit risk 125,140,751 77,340,969
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3 5
On a group On a group On a group Stage
31 December 2011 _ basis basis basis individually Total
Cash and cash equivalents 80,453,806 ' 80,453,806
Accounts and deposits with
bariks 162,812 ;:;.gl:
Financial assets at FYTOCI 970,769 . . - ;
Loans granted 10 CUSTOMETS 19,241,070 928,341 115,206 2,140,170 212 44 BBE
Financfal assets at
amartized cost 10,907,670 - 20,907 .g:
Other financlal assets 201, 3046 . ' 2 201,
Total assets 121,956,933 918,342 115,206 2,140,270 125,140,751
Stage 1 Stage 1 Stage 3
On a group Onagroup  On agroup Stage 3

31 December 2021 basis basks basis Individually Total
Cash and cash eguivalents 44 619,156 - 44 179,156
Accounts and deposits with
anks 176, %8 - 176,582
Financial assets at FYTOC! 1,261,647 . . . 1,261,647
Loans granted to customers 18,092,542 1,566,977 12,514 416,297 20,088,330
Fenancial assets at
amortized cost G2 TR0 9,832,790
Other financial assets 1,312,064 1,312,064
Total assets 75,345,181 1,566,977 12,514 416,297 7T 340,969

An analysis of collateral on loans granted to customers and the concentration of credit risk on loans to
customers i4 presented in Hote 15,

The maximum sxpasure to credit risk for unrecognized contractual liabilities at the reporting date is
presented in Hote 24,

45 of 31 December 2022, the Bank has no debtors (31 December 2021: none) whode exposure to credit
risk exceeds 10% of the maximum expasure to credit risk,

Significant Increase in credld risk

The Bank monftors all of the financial assets that qualify for Impafrment requirements for significant
increases in credit risk since initial recognition. If a significant increase in credit risk is detected, the
Bank calculates the amount of an allowance based on the amount of credit losses expected during the
entire Loan term and not just the next 12 months.
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The Bank uses estimates of credit risk as the main input In determining the timing structure of the
probability of default for exposures. The Bank collects perfermance and default information on credit
exposures analysed by jurisdiction or region, as well as by product type and borrawer, as well as by credit
risk classification. The information used is internal and external depending on the portfolio being
assessed.

The Bank uses various criteria to determine whether the credit risk per portfolio of assets has im:r_:a:,:d
significantly. Both quantitative and qualitative changes in the probability of default are used as criteria.

For loans granted that are measured collectively, a significant increase in credit risk is determined based
on the increase in the probability of default over the entire loan term after initial recognition, using
certain thresholds for segmented homogeneous portfolios and for leans overdue more than 30 days after
initial recognition, For loans that are measured on an individual basis, additionally in caze of a decrease
in the external / internal credit rating by 2 (two) levels (presence of restructuring in case of deterioration
of the financial condition for classification in Stage 3), the expest opinions of the Bank's specialists are
bated on changes in qualitative and quantitative indicators of a borrower, significant deterioration in
collateral and other objective evidence of significant financial difficulties since initial recognition,

The third stage is determined for loans measured on a collective basis with an overdue debt period
exceeding 60-90 days, for loans measured on an Individual basis with an overdue over 60 days,
restructuring associated with a deterioration in the financlal condition, deterioration of the internal
credit rating and expert opinien of the Bank's specialists.

The Bank's management believes that certain financial instruments with low credit risk did not have a
significant Increase in credit risk at the reporting date by applying this policy to financial instruments
issued only to sovereign and financial institutions. A financial instrument is assumed to have a low credit
risk when the external credit rating ks equivalent to the definition of an 'investment grade' by the
international rating agencies,

The Bank has implemented monitoring procedures to enswre that the criterla used to determine a
significant increase in credit are effective, meaning that a significant increase in credit risk is identified
prior to a risk default or when an asset becomes 30 days past due.

Fraowision of farward-looking information

The Bank uses forward-looking fnformation, which & available without undue cost or effort, when
estimating significant increase in credit risk, as well as when estimating expected credit lasses.

The inclusion of forward-looking elements reflects the Bank's expectations. The Bank considers scenarios
the number of which depends on the assessment of the likelihood of implementation, the significance of
this scenario, changing circumstances and the macroeconomic environment.

The purpose of using scenarios is to model the non-linear impact of macroeconambc factors an expected
credit losses.

The Bank identified and documented the key indicators affecting portfolios of financial instruments and,
using statistical analysés of historical data, assessed the relationship between macroeconomic variables
and credit risk and credit loss.

Liquidity risk

Lbguildity risk 1s the risk that the Bank may encounter difficulty im raising cash to settle its liabilitles,
Liguldity risk arises when maturities of assets and liabilities do not match. The matching and/or
controlled mismatching of the maturities and interest rates of assets and Labilities is fundamental to
liquidity risk management. Due to the variety of transactions settled and related uncertainty, the full
matching of the maturities of assets and liabilities s not & common practice for financial institutions,
wiich makes it possible to increase the return on tramsactbors, while increasing the risk of losses,

The Bank maintains the necessary level of liquidity in order to ensure the constant availability of cash
necessary to setile all liabflithes as they fall due. The liguidity management policy s reviewed and
approved by the Board of Directors. The Bank strives to actively maintain a diversified and stable
structure of funding sources consisting of Long-term loans from international financial organtzations,
short-term loans from other banks, deposits of major corporate customers and individueals, as well as a
diversified portfolio of highly liquid asssets to epable the Bank to respond quickly without sidden
fluctuations to unforeseen liguidity requirements.
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The section of the corporate risk management policy, which relates to liquidity risk management,
consists af:

. farecasting the cash flows in the context of the main currencies and the calculation associated
with these cash flows of the required level of liquid assets;

’ maintaining a diversified structure of funding sources;

. management of the concentration and structure of borrowed funds;

' development of plans to raise funds using borrowed funds;

. maintaining a portfolio of highly liquid assets that can be freely sold as a protective measure in

case of cash liquidity gap;

developing reserve plans to maintain liguidity and set level of financing; and

. exercising control over the conformance of liquidity Indicators to the legally established standards.

The Treasury receives information from the divisions on the liquidity structure of their financial assets
and liabilitles and on forecasting the cash flows expected from the planned future business.

The Treasury then forms an appropriate portfolio of current liquid assets consisting primarily of short-
term liguid securities held for trade, deposits placed with banks, and other interbank products, in arder

to provide the necessary level of liguidity for the Bank as a whale,

The Treasury monitors the liquidity position an a daily basis and carries out “stress tests’ on a regular
basis taking inte account a variety of possible market scenarios under both normal and adverse
conditions, Under normal market conditions, liguidity reports are provided to the top management on a
weekly basis. Decisions on liquidity management policy are made by the CALM and executed by the
Treasury.

The following tables show the undiscounted cash flows for financial assets, financial labilities and
contingent credit liabilities at the earliest contractual maturity date. The total receipts and disposals of
cash flows shown in these tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows of financial assets,
liabilithes or contingent credit liabilities. For issued financial guarantee contracts, the maximum amount

of guarantees relates to the earliest period in which the guarantee can be used.
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(d)

{thousand Kozakhstan tengel

CAPITAL MAMAGEMENT
The RE HB sets and monitors compliance with the Bank's capital reguirements,

The Bank attributes to eguity the items that are defined in accordance with the legisiation as items
constituting the capital of credit organizations. As of 31 December 2022, the minimum levat of Tier ¥
capital to the value of risk-weighted assets, contingent liabilities, operating and market risks is 0.073
{31 December 2001: 0.075), and the minimum level of total capital to the total of risk-weighted assets,
contingent liabilities, operating and market risks is 0.10 {31 December 2021: 0.10).

As of 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021, the Bank met all regulatory capital requirements, with
Tier 1 capital to risk-weighted assets, contingent liabilities, operating and market risks, being 0.853 as
of 31 December 2002 (31 December 2021: 0.748) and the level of total eguity to risk-weighted assets,
contingent liabilities, operating and market risks being 0.693 (31 December 2021: 0.74E).

CONTINGENT CREDIT LIABILITIES
Contingent credit liabilities

The Bank issues bank guarantees and opens letters of credit in order to ensure the fulfilment of the
obligations of its customers to third parties. These agreements fix Hability mits and, as & rule, are valid
for up ta five years,

The Bank applies the same risk management policies and procedures in issuing financial guarantees,
cantingent credit liabilities and letters of credit as it does in granting loans (o customers,

As of 31 December 1022, the Bank had outstanding contrectual contingent liabilities in respect of the
provision of credit facilities in the amount of 3,545,348 thousand terge (371 December 2021: 2,168,232
thausand tenge) and issued guarantees and Letters of credit in the amownt of 30,263 thousand tenge (31
December 2021; BO, 256 thousand tenge).

Pending litigations

The management s not aware of any material actual or pending litigations, as well as potential claims
that may be brought against the Bank.

Insurance

The market of imsurance services in the Republic of Kazakhstan fs at the stage of development, therefore,
many forms of ingurance coverage used in other countries are not yet available in the Republic of
Kazakhstan, The Bank did not maintain full insurance of buildings and equipment, suspension of business
of in relation to the Hability of third parties for property or environmental damage cawsed as a result of
the use of the Bank's property.

Thee Bank concCluded the agreement of comprehensive insurance of banking risks against electronic and
computer crimes. The insurer is Homad Insurance IC J5C. The agreement is valid for 12 months from the
date of signing.

Until the Bank adeguately insures its activities, there is & risk that losses incurred and or Loss of certain
assets may have a material adverse effect on the activities and financial position of the Bank.

Tax Habdlities

The tax system of Kazakhstan is relatively new and it is characterized by frequent changes in legislation,
official clarifications and cowt decishons that are often unclear and contradictory, which allows for their
ambiguous interpretation by various tax awthorities, inclueding opinions regarding the treatment of
inceme, expenses and other items of the financial statements in accordance with IFRSs. Checks and
investigations regarding the correctness of tax assessment are carried out by regulatory authorities of
different levels, which have the right to impose large penalties and charge interest. The correctness of
tax assessment in the reporting pericd can be verified within the next five calendar years, however,
under certain circumstances, this period may be extended.

These clroumstances may lead Lo the fact that tax risks in Kazakhstan will be much higher than In other
countries, Management believes that tax labilities have been fully reflected in these financial
statements based on management’s interpretation of applicable tax laws, officlal comments on
regulatory documents and decisions of judicial autharities. However, glven the fact that interpretations
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of tax laws by various regulatory authorities may differ from opinion of the Bank's management, if
enforcement action i taken by the regulatory authorities, the impact on the Bank's financial statements
could be material,

RELATED PARTY TRAMSACTIONS
Controlling relations

The Bank's parent company is Shinhan Bank JSC {Seoul, Republic of Korea). The parent company of the
Bank prepares the financial statements available to external users

The Bank's ultimate parent company is Shinhan Financlal Group Co. Ltd, which fe authorized to direct at
its own discretion and in its own interests the activitles of the Bank.

Transactions with members of the Board of Directors and the Management Board

The total remuneration included in 'Personnel Expenses’ for the yvears ended 31 Becember 2022 and 2021
cin b presented as follows:

2022 201

Board of Directors 7,864 7,000
Managerment Board 321,15 319,714
319,020 326,714

As of 31 December 2022 and 2021, account balances and average interest rates on transactions with
members of the Board of Directors and Management Board amounted to:

Ltatement of financial

position 2022 Average interest rate, % 2021 Average Interest rate, %
Othar yisets 1,442 : 1,053 -
Curment accounts and deposits {58,%15) 1.26  (40,194) 3,58
Other liabilities {41,493} - (25,687 -

The amounts included in profit or Loss on transactions with members of the Board of Directors and the
Management Board for the year ended 31 December may be presented as follows:

Statement of profit or less and other comprehensive inceme 021 1021
Foreign exchange gains /(losses) 1,014 463
Fee income/ [expentes| n i
Interest expenses TE4 1,052
Other general and administrative expenses 639 348

Transactions with other related parties

As of 31 December 1011 and 1011, account balances and the corresponding average interest rates, as
well as the corresponding profit or loss on transactions with other related parties for the year then
ended, amouwnted to:

Parent bank Other related parties
Aversge Average

statement of financlal position 2012  nterest rate, % 1022 interest rate %
ASSETS
Lash and cash eguivalents

« Eurg - : 112,537

- QEhEr currency E : 61
Loans granted to customers

- tenge . = 1,476,181 14,56
Other assets

- tenge
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Accowntd and depasits of banks

- tenge 41 841 -

- U5 el lar 13,713 .

- Euro 4,121 -
Current accounts and depasits of
Cuslomers

- benge - 445 523 5.9

. S dallar - 26,678 0.5
Loans from banks

= U5 dallar 13,808,2M 4.55 ' -
Onher labilities

- tenge 25, 260 - 112

- U5 doliar G0, 479 - - .
Items not recognized in the statermnent of
financial position
Recelved guarantees® 3,816,385 - 1,500,000
Credit facilities . - 100,000,000

Parent bank Other related parties

Statement of profit or loss and other Avarage Average
comprehensive income 2022  interest rate, % 2022  interest rate, %
Foreign exchange gains 7108 - 2,890 -
Interest income - - 182,592 -
Interest expenses &.8M - iT.AT0 =
Fee Income 3,980 . 5,864 -
Fee expenses 195,451 - 5, 485 .

Dther general and administrative expenses 78,584 *
Cther operating income/ [expenses], net - '
"Guarantes recesved from other refated parties ncludes tenge guarantees |ssued by a compary from the growp of

Shinhan Financial Ceroug Co. Lid, on loans granted to fts subsidiary In Kazakhstan, Guarantees are interest-free,
puarantees expire on 13 August 2024 and 17 Manch 2024,

Parent bank Other related partiey

Average Average interest
Statemnent of financial position 2021  interest rate, % 2021 rate, %

ASSETS

Cash and cash eguivalents
- Euro - : 20,656

- ather clrrency - - 4313
Loans granted to customers
- tenge - = 1,202, 10.71
Other assets
- lenge -
LIABILITIES
dccounts and depaosits of banks
* tenge E48, 735
« W5 daliar 146,814

- Elwrgy 2,748

Current accounts and deposits of
CUELOmers 307, 50% ERE
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fnn 3
s - tenge - - 513 0.82
= LS dallar . - - :
Other HabRities
- berige . - 74 .
- Lis dollar 108,509 . : :
Iberms not recogrized o the statement of
fimanctal position
Recelved guarantees® 1,788,620 < 1,000,000
Parent bank Other related parties
Staternent of profit or loss and other Average Average Interest
comprehensive income 2021 Enterest rate, % 2021 rate, %
Foreign exchange gains 1313 - 1,167
Interest income - - 128,794
Interest expenses - . 12,757
Fee income 4,361 - 1,916
Fee expenses 134,554 - 4,753
Other general and administrative
EXDENSES 135,57

Other operating tncome (expenses), net = - =

‘Guarantee received from ather related parties Includes tenge guarantees issued by a company from the group of
Shinhan Financial Group Co, Lid, en loand granted to Its subsidiary in Kazakhstan, Guarantees are intefest-frée,
guarantees expire on 27 May 2022 and 26 August 2021,
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The Fair value measurement alms to determine the price that would be received from sale of an asset or
paid to transfer liabilities In an organized market transaction between the market players at the
measurement date. However, given the uncertainty and the use of subjective judgment, fair value should
not be interprated as realizable as part of an immediate sale of assets or & transfer of liabilities.

The fair value of financial assets and financial llabilitles traded in active market s based on market
quotations or dealer prices. The Bank determines the fair value of all other financial instruments of the
Bank using the other valuaticn methods.

The valuation methads include models for estimating net present value and discounting cash flows,
comparing them with similar instruments for which market quotations are known. Judgments and data
used for estimating include risk-free and underlying interest rates, credit spreads and other adjustments
used to estimate discount rates, share and bond quotations, foreign exchange rates, stock indices, as
well a3 expected price fluctuations and thelr comparison. The waluation methods are aimed at
determining the fair value, which reflects the value of a financial instrument at the reporting date, which
would be determined by independent market players,

The management used an assumption at a discount rate of 17.80% and 18.82% (2021: 13.68% and 13.87%)
to discount future cash flows from measurement of the fair value of tenge loans granted to corporate
customers and loans granted to varfous customers, respectively, and 5.20% (2021:; 5.20%) to discount
futwre cash flows from measurement of the fair value of US dollar loans granted to corporate customers,

Fair value hierarchy

The Bank measures fair value using the following fair value hierarchy taking into account the materiality
of the data used in making these measurements,

. Level 1; active market guotations {unadjusted) for identical financial instruments.

' Level 1. Data, other than Level 1 guotations, available either directly (i.e. guotations) or
indirectly (i.e, data derived from guotations), This category includes instruments measured using: market
quotations in active markets for identical instruments, market guotations for identical instruments in
markets not considered to be active, or other valuation methods, all of whose data are directly or
indirectly based on observable inputs,

. Level 3: data that is not available. This category includes instruments measured using information
not based on observable inputs, where such uncbservable inputs have a significant impact on
measurement of an instrument. This category includes instruments measwured based on quotations far

identical instruments and require the use of significant unobservable adjustments or judgments to reflect
a difference between the instruments.

The Bank has a control system in relation to the fair value measurement. This system includes the Risk
management Department, which is independent from the management of the front office and reports to
the Chief Financial Officer, and which is responsible for the independent verification of the trading and

investment performance, as well as all material fair value measurements. Special control mechanisms
include:

» werification of cbservable quotations;
« recalculation according to valuation models:

* process of verification and approval of new models and changes to models with the participation
of the Risk Management Department;

* guarterly validation and back-testing of the model against observable market transactions;
« analysis and study of significant daily changes in estimates: and

» review by the Management Board of significant unobservable data, valuation adjustments and

significant changes in the measurement of fair value of the instruments attributable to Level 3 as
oppased ta the previows month,

When using third party information, Including information about prices and market quotations of brokers,
Lo measure a fair value, the Credit Products Control Department evaluates and documents confirmations

received from third parties in order to confirm the conclusion that such measurements meet the
requirements of IFRSs, including:
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L o« confirmation that information about prices or market quotations of brokers is approved by the
OTirom Bank for use in pricing the financial instruments;

» an understanding of how a fair value is measured to the extent that it represents actual market
Transactiong,

» cases where guotations for identical Instruments are used to measure a fair value, determining
how those quitations have besn adjusted to reflect the characteristics of the instrument being
measured; and

« cases of using a number of quotations for kdentical financial Instruments, determining how a fair
walwe b5 measured wing these quotations,
Significant isswes related to the measurement are brought to the attention of the Management Board.
The table below provides an analysis of financial instruments reported at fair value as of 31 December

1022 and 2021, by levels of the fair value hierarchy. The amounts are based on the amounts shaown in
the statement of financial position.

Love| 1
31.12.2022  31.12.2021
Financial assets at fair value through other
comprefensive inoome
« debt securities 970,269 1,261,647

The tables below provide an analysis of the fair value of financial instruments not measured at fair value
as of 31 December 2022 and 2021, by levels of the fair value erarchy:

2022 Lewel 2 Level 3 Fair value Carrying amount

Fimancial assets

Accounts and depasits with banks 181,812 - 181,812 182,812

Loans granted Lo CUSTOMETS 24,630,850 - 74,530,850 22, 424 B8R

Fimancial assets al amortized cost 19,986,943 - 19,586,543 20,907,670

Other financial assets 201,308 - 0,308 101,106
45,001,911 - 45,001,%11 43,716,676

Financial liabilities

Accounts and deposits of banks 749,505 & 9.508 79,509

Current accounts and deposits of

CUBDOMmeTs 83 627 812 2 &2,627.812 82,627 811

Loans from internaticnal financial

organizations B,230,594 - B,230,5%4 8,230,594

Loans from banks 13,E88,21 . 13,888,271 11,888,271

Other MNnancial Labilities 557,505 8 557,505 557,505
105,383, 691 . 105,383,691 105,383,691

011 Level 2 Level 3 Falr value Carrying amount

Financial sssets

Accounts and deposits with Banks 176,981 . 176,987 178,582

Loans granted to customers 19,555,678 . 19,555,474 20,088,230

Financial assets at amortized cost 9,405,454 : 9,405,454 9,822,790

Other financial assets 1,312,064 - 1,312,064 1,311,004
30,450,218 30,450,218 11,400,166

Financlal llabilities

Accounts and deposits of banks 798,297 - T98,257 798,297
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' Firs r

. ortmen < 2y Lowel 2 Level 3 Falr value  Carrying amount
o Current accounts and depasits of
customerns 53,772,125 - 8,772,218 51,772,128
Loans from international faancial
arganizations 4,797,176 - 4,797,176 4,797,176
Other financial Liabilities 1,734,255 1,734 155 1,734, 155
£1,101,953 - 81,101,953 &1,101,953

Level 1: Cash and cash equivalents as of 11,12, 2021 amounbed to 80,453,806 thousand tenge (31,12, 2021
- 44 679,156 thousand tenge).

31. EVENTS AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE

There are no other events at the Bank that occcurred prios to the date of approval of the financial
staterments that would require adjustment or disclosure in the notes to the financial statements.
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